
PLANNING COMMISSION 

KAAINA S. HULL, CLERK OF COMMISSION

• The Planning Commission Meeting will be at:

Office of Boards and Commissions 

4444 Rice Street, Suite 300 

Lihue, HI 96766 

FRANCIS DEGRACIA, CHAIR

:_·DONNA APISA, VICE CHAIR

GERALD AKO, MEMBER

HELEN COX, MEMBER

GLENDA NOGAMI STREUFERT, MEMBER

"23 AfWR.'QO�""�' MEMBER

LORI OTSUKA, MEMBER

,i'! y 
- . �\ l I 
,.,,,, -•\_,:, I 

• Oral testimony will be taken on specific agenda items, at the public meeting location

indicated on the meeting agenda.

• Written testimony indicating your 1) name or pseudonym, and if applicable, your

position/title and organization you are representing, and 2) the agenda item that you are

providing comment on, may be submitted on any agenda item in writing to

planningdepartment@kauai.gov or mailed to the County of Kaua'i Planning Department,

4444 Rice Street, Suite 473, Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766. Written testimony received by the

Planning Department at least 24 hours prior to the meeting will be posted as testimony to

the Planning Commission's website prior to the meeting

(https://www.kauai.gov/Government/Boards-and-Commissions/Planning-Commission).

Any testimony received after this time will be retained as part of the record, but we cannot

assure the Commission will receive it with sufficient time for review prior to the meeting.

IF YOU NEED AN AUXILIARY AID/SERVICE, OTHER ACCOMMODATION DUE TO A DISABILITY, OR 

AN INTERPRETER FOR NON-ENGLISH SPEAKING PERSONS, PLEASE CONTACT THE OFFICE OF 

BOARDS & COMMISSIONS AT (808) 241-4917 OR ADAVIS@KAUAI.GOV AS SOON AS POSSIBLE. 

REQUESTS MADE AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE WILL ALLOW ADEQUATE TIME TO FULFILL YOUR 

REQUEST. UPON REQUEST, THIS NOTICE IS AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATE FORMATS SUCH AS LARGE 

PRINT, BRAILLE, OR ELECTRONIC COPY. 

4444 Rice Street, Suite A473 • LThu'e, Hawai'i 96766 • (808) 241-4050 (b) 

An Equal Opportunity Employer 



PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Tuesday, August 8, 2023 

9:00 a.m. or shortly thereafter '"? i:- ,*,,--··
.IC: ;.. 

Lihu'e Civic Center, Office of Boards and Commissions 
4444 Rice Street, Suite 300, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

D. MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Planning Commission

1. May 9, 2023.

E. RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD

1. None for this Meeting.

F. HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT

1. Continued Agency Hearing

a. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-9) to allow construction of a 5

feet high entry gate, water feature, and associated improvements within the private road

right-of-way serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po'ipu, situated along the

makai side of Pe'e Road and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe'e

Road, further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of

approximately 0.946 acres = Makahuena*Preferred A LLC et al. [Director's Report

Received and hearing deferred on 4/11/2023].

1. Stipulation Regarding SMA Use Permit SMA(U)-2023-9 and Construction of a 5

Feet High Entry Gate and to Vacate Contested Case Hearing.

2. New Agency Hearing

a. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-12) to allow construction of a

new single family residential structure on a parcel situated along the makai side of Kuhio

Highway in Kapa'a Town, situated directly across the formerly Kojima Store,

approximately 200 feet south of the Kapa'a Neighborhood Center and further identified

as 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map Key: (4) 4-5-012:048, containing a total area of

approximately 2,520 square feet= BENSON C. & ARCHIE A. PERALTA.

1. Director's Report Pertaining to this Matter.

PLANNING COMMISSION -AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE 2 



b. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-13), CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT

(Z-IV-2023-11) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-8) to allow construction of a viewing platform

and associated site improvements within the Pa'ula'ula State Historical Park in Waimea,

along the makai side of Kaumuali'i Highway, approximately 800 feet east of Waimea

Town, further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 1-7-005:003 and containing a total area of

17.26 acres= STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES

(DLNR). [Director's Report Received July 25, 2023.)

1. Director's Report Pertaining to this Matter.

c. CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2023-12) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-9) to construct a new

gymnasium on the Waimea High School campus in Waimea Town, and VARIANCE PERMIT

(V-2023-3) to deviate from the height requirement within the Residential zoning district,

situated approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumuali'i Highway intersection,

further identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Tax Map Keys: 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-009:023,

and containing a total area of 11.11 acres = STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF

EDUCATION. [Director's Report Received July 25, 2023).

1. Director's Report Pertaining to this Matter.

3. Continued Public Hearing

a. None for this Meeting.

4. New Public Hearing

a. None for this Meeting.

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Status Reports

a. 2023 Annual Report on the progress and status of compliance and conditions of the

subject permits for Hokuala Resort (formerly Kauai Lagoons LLC & MORI Golf (Kauai) LLC)

in accordance with Condition No. 28 Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-

2006-5, Project Development Use Permit PDU-2005-26, Use Permit U-2005-25, and Class

IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2005-30, Tax Map Key: (4)3-5-001:027 (Por.), 168, 169, 171 (Por.),

172 (Por.), 175, and 176.

1. Director's Report pertaining to this matter.

2. Director's Report for Project(s) Scheduled for Agency Hearing

a. None for this Meeting.

3. Class Ill Zoning Permits

a. None for this Meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE 3 



H. GENERAL BUSINESS MATTERS

l. Pursuant to Chapter 9, Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Kauai County Planning Commission

and Chapter 8, Article 27.13 Appeal of the Director's Determination, Kauai County Code, 1987 as

amended; Appellants Malama Kua aina and Caren Diamond, Executive Director, and in my

individual capacity file this Petition for Appeal regarding Try Slow, LLC Shoreline Setback

Determination Exemptions, File No. SSD 2023-45, SSD 2023-46, SSD 2023-47 and SSD-2023- 48

dated 5/23/2023, TMK 5-8-8:034 noticed on the Planning Commission Agenda June 27, 2023.

I. COMMUNICATION

l. None for this meeting.

J. COMMITTEE REPORTS

l. Subdivision Committee

a. None for this meeting.

K. UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action)

l. None for this meeting.

L. NEW BUSINESS (For Action)

1. SPECIAL MA NAG EM ENT AREA USE PERM IT (SMA(U)-2023-9) to allow construction of a 5 feet high

entry gate, water feature, and associated improvements within the private road right-of-way

serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po'ipu, situated along the makai side of Pe'e Road

and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe'e Road, further identified as Tax Map

Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of approximately 0.946 acres = Makahuena

Preferred A LLC et al. [Director's Report Received and hearing deferred on 4/11/2023].

2. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-12) to allow construction of a new

single family residential structure on a parcel situated along the makai side of Kuhio Highway in

Kapa'a Town, situated directly across the formerly Kojima Store, approximately 200 feet south

of the Kapa'a Neighborhood Center and further identified as 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map

Key: (4) 4-5-012:048, containing a total area of approximately 2,520 square feet= BENSON C. &

ARCELIE A. PERALTA.

3. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-13), CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-

2023-11) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-8) to allow construction of a viewing platform and associated

site improvements within the Pa'ula'ula State Historical Park in Waimea, along the makai side of

Kaumuali'i Highway, approximately 800 feet east of Waimea Town, further identified as Tax Map

Key: (4) 1-7-005:003 and containing a total area of 17.26 acres = STATE OF HAWAII,

DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES (DLNR). [Director's Report Received July 25,

2023).

PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE 4 



4. CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2023-12) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-9) to construct a new

gymnasium on the Waimea High School campus in Waimea Town, and VARIANCE PERMIT (V-

2023-3) to deviate from the height requirement within the Residential zoning district, situated

approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumuali'i Highway intersection, further

identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Tax Map Keys: 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-009:023, and containing a

total area of 11.11 acres= STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. [Director's Report

Received July 25, 2023].

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION

Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes Sections 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this executive session

is to consult with the County's legal counsel on questions, issues, status, and procedural matters. This

consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or liabilities of the

Commission and the County as they relate to the following matters:

1. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERM IT (SMA(U)-2023-9) to allow construction of a 5 feet high

entry gate, water feature, and associated improvements within the private road right-of-way

serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po'ipu, situated along the makai side of Pe'e Road

and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe'e Road, further identified as Tax Map

Key: (4) 2-8-021:078, containing a total area of approximately 0.946 acres = Makahuena

Preferred A LLC et al. [Director's Report Received and hearing deferred on 4/11/2023].

2. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-12) to allow construction of a new

single family residential structure on a parcel situated along the makai side of Kuhio Highway in

Kapa'a Town, situated directly across the formerly Kojima Store, approximately 200 feet south

of the Kapa'a Neighborhood Center and further identified as 4-1542 Kuhio Highway, Tax Map

Key: (4) 4-5-012:048, containing a total area of approximately 2,520 square feet= BENSON C. &

ARCELIE A. PERALTA.

3. SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-13), CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-

2023-11) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-8) to allow construction of a viewing platform and associated

site improvements within the Pa'ula'ula State Historical Park in Waimea, along the makai side of

Kaumuali'i Highway, approximately 800 feet east of Waimea Town, further identified as Tax Map

Key: (4) 1-7-005:003 and containing a total area of 17.26 acres = STATE OF HAWAII,

DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES (DLNR) [Director's Report Received July 25,

2023].

4. CLASS IV ZONING PERMIT (Z-IV-2023-12) and USE PERMIT (U-2023-9) to construct a new

gymnasium on the Waimea High School campus in Waimea Town, and VARIANCE PERMIT (V-

2023-3) to deviate from the height requirement within the Residential zoning district, situated

approximately 550 feet mauka of the Ola Road/Kaumuali'i Highway intersection, further

identified as 9707 Tsuchiya Road, Tax Map Keys: 1-6-010:004 and 1-6-009:023, and containing a

total area of 11.11 acres= STATE OF HAWAII, DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION. [Director's Report

Received July 25, 2023].

5. 2023 Annual Report on the progress and status of compliance and conditions of the subject

permits for Hokuala Resort (formerly Kauai Lagoons LLC & MORI Golf (Kauai) LLC) in accordance

with Condition No. 28 Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2006-5, Project

Development Use Permit PDU-2005-26, Use Permit U-2005-25, and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-

2005-30, Tax Map Key: (4)3-5-001:027 (Por.), 168, 169, 171 (Por.), 172 (Por.), 175, and 176.

PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE 5 



6. Pursuant to Chapter 9, Rules of Practice and Procedure of the Kauai County Planning Commission
and Chapter 8, Article 27.13 Appeal of tlie Director's Determination, Kauai County Code, 1987 as
amended; Appellants Malama Kua aina and Caren Diamond, Executive Director, and in my
individual capacity file this Petition for Appeal regarding Try Slow, LLC Shoreline Setback
Determination Exemptions, File No. SSD 2023-45, SSD 2023-46, SSD 2023-47 and SSD-2023- 48
dated 5/23/2023, TMK 5-8-8:034 noticed on the Planning Commission Agenda June 27, 2023.

N. ANNOUNCEMENTS

1. Topics for Future Meetings.

The following regularly scheduled Planning Commission meeting will be held at 9:00 a.m., or
shortly thereafter, on August 22, 2023. The Planning Commission anticipates this meeting to be
held in-person at the Lihu'e Civic Center, Office of Boards and Commissions, 4444 Rice Street,
Suite 300, Lihu'e, Kaua'i, Hawai'i. The Commission will announce its intended meeting method
via an agenda electronically posted at least six days prior to the meeting date.

O. ADJOURNMENT

PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE 6 



DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

MICHAEL A. OAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA (SMA) MINOR DETERMINATIONS 

Date (Action) SMA Minor Permit Location (TMK) Activity/ structure 

number 

Approved SMA(M)-2023-20 Waimea (1-6-006:001) To comply with levee 

(06.29.2023) requirements as outlined by the 

U.S. Army Corp of Engineers/ 

Designated tree removal. 

Approved SMA(M)-2023-21 Lihu'e (3-5-002:002) Construction and placement/ 

(07.03.2023) Three (3) 12X12 feet (144 s.f.) 

beach cabanas. 

Approved SMA(M)-2023-22 Koloa (2-6-012:004 Unit 2) Construction/ Second story 

(7.10.23) addition on existing detached 

garage. 

Approved SMA(M)-2022-5 Hanalei (5-5-010:055) Construction/ Six (6) foot high 

(7.14.23) redwood fence and gate. 

PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE 7 



Pursuant to Section 8-27.8 (6) of the Kaua'i County Code (1987), as amended, the following shoreline 

setback determinations by the Director are disclosed for purposes of public notification. 

August 8, 2023 

SHORELINE SETBACK DETERMINATIONS 

Application No. Name of Applicant(s) Property I.D. Location Development/Reasons 

(Tax Map Key) 

SSD-2024-1 Kauai Federal Credit Union (4) 4-5-012;021 Kapa'a Renovations of Existing 

and (4) 4-5- Structure./ Stable-accreting 

012:043 shoreline. Required setback 

60 feet from shoreline. 

Development approximately 

90 to 180 feet from 

vegetation/ evidenced 

shoreline. 

SSD-2024-2 Steven Pappas (4) 1-8-019:016 Hanapepe New sitting room, study 

room, and bathroom 

addition to existing 

residence./ Rocky shoreline 

required setback 60 feet. 

Development approximately 

181 feet away from 

evidenced shoreline. 

SSD-2024-3 Stewart Neil Husband (4) 1-6-006:011 Waimea New single-family dwelling./ 

Unit 1 Accreting shoreline required 

100-foot setback.

Development approximately

226 feet from evidenced

shoreline.

SSD-2024-4 Stanley and Donna Alongi (4) 2-8-015:007 Koloa Repair and Renovations/ 

Family TR Unit 7 Kitchen work and repairs 

deemed unsubstantial. 

SSD-2024-5 Try Slow LLC (4) 5-8-008:039 Hanalei Repair to existing cottage 

#5./Repair work deemed 

unsubstantial. 

PLANNING COMMISSION - AUGUST 8, 2023 PAGE8 



1 

KAUA`I PLANNING COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

May 09, 2023 
DRAFT 

The regular meeting of the Planning Commission of the County of Kaua'i was called to order by  Chair 
DeGracia at 9:07 a.m. - Webcast Link:  https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings 

The following Commissioners were present: 

      Mr. Gerald Ako 
  Ms. Helen Cox 

            Mr. Francis DeGracia 
Ms. Glenda Nogami Streufert 
        Mr. Jerry Ornellas 
          Ms. Lori Otsuka 

Excused or Absent 

           Ms. Donna Apisa 

The following staff members were present: Planning Department – Director Ka'aina Hull, Deputy 
Director Jodi Higuchi Sayegusa, Staff Planner Dale Cua, Romio Idica, Kenny Estes, and Planning 
Commission Support Clerk Duke Nakamatsu; Office of the County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney 
Chris Donahoe, Office of Boards and Commissions – Support Clerk Lisa Oyama. 

Discussion of the meeting, in effect, ensued: 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Francis DeGracia: The time is 9:07, I’d like to call to order the Planning Commission meeting for 
Tuesday, May 09, 2023. Could I get a roll call please, Mr. Clerk? 

Planning Director Ka'aina Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako? 

Commissioner Ako: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Apisa is excused. Commissioner Cox? 

Commissioner Cox: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Commissioner Ornellas: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka? 

Commissioner Otsuka: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 

D.1.
August 8, 2023

https://www.kauai.gov/Webcast-Meetings


2 

Commissioner Streufert: Here. 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Here. 

Mr. Hull: You have a quorum, Mr. Chair. Next would be the approval of the agenda. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Mr. Hull: The Department doesn’t have any recommended changes to the agenda. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Could I get a motion to approve the agenda? 

Ms. Streufert: I move to approve the agenda. 

Ms. Otsuka: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Let’s take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose? 
Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

MINUTES of the meeting(s) of the Planning Commission 

Mr. Hull: We have no minutes for review in this meeting.  

RECEIPT OF ITEMS FOR THE RECORD 

Mr. Hull: We move on to Receipt of Items for the Record. We did not receive any additional items prior 
to publication of the agenda on May 3, 2023. However, we did receive some testimony, as well as agency 
comments, and a submittal from a party that is on the agenda, after the May 3rd publication of the agenda, 
as such these documents have been made only available only to you folks this morning. You have not 
reviewed them, it also has been made available for the public, here in the Planning Commission room as 
well as at the Planning Department. Chair, I don’t know if you want to take a recess to afford the 
Commissioners time to review these documents. 

Chair DeGracia: Yes, the Commission would like to take a 15-minute recess to review this current item, 
so we’ll reconvene in about 15-minutes, at 9:25. 

     Commission went into recess at 9:09 a.m. 
Commission reconvened from recess at 9:25 a.m. 

Chair DeGracia: The time is 9:25, I’d like to call back to order the Planning Commission meeting. 

HEARINGS AND PUBLIC COMMENT 

Mr. Hull: Next on the agenda we have Hearings and Public Comment.  

New Agency Hearing 

Mr. Hull: We have a New Agency Hearing. For members of the public viewing virtually, we’re back in 
session. We are on New Agency Hearing.  



3 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-10), CLASS IV ZONING 
PERMIT (Z-IV-2023-10), USE PERMIT (U-2023-7) to allow construction of public shared use 
path extending from Nawiliwili Park to Ahukini Landing and associated improvements involving 
a new comfort station, drainage ways, protective fencing and paved parking area, and 
SHORELINE SETBACK VARIANCE PERMIT (SSV-2023-1) to deviate from the shoreline 
setback requirement involving properties along makai side of the Līhu'e Airport, further identified 
as Tax Map Keys: 3-5-001:004, 005, 008, 009, 085, 092, 102, 128, 158 & 160; 3-7-002:001 
(Por.) and affecting a total area of approx. 9.2 acres = County of Kaua'i, Department of Public 
Works.  

Mr. Hull: We don’t have any members of the public signed up to testify. Is there anyone in the audience 
that has shown up that would like to testify as a member of the public, if so, please approach the 
microphone. Seeing none, the Department would recommend closing the agency hearing. 

Unknown Male: Sorry, I (inaudible) represent the County, I’m the consultant. 

Mr. Hull: We’re going to go…sorry, Sir. This is just the agency hearing portion, so this is for public 
testimony, but we’ll move into your portion very shortly here. 

Unknown Male: Sorry. Okay. Thank you. 

Ms. Streufert: I move to close the New Agency Hearing on SMA 2023-10, Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-
2023-10 and Use Permit U-2023-7. 

Ms. Cox: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, motion on the floor is to close the new agency hearing for this agenda 
item. We’ll take a voice vote on this one. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose? 
Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

Mr. Hull: Moving on, we have no further items on Consent Calendar or General Business, so, we move 
into the Subdivision Committee. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Subdivision Committee 

Final Subdivision Map Approval 

Subdivision Application No. 5-2005-41 
Visionary LLC. DBA Lihu'e Land Company 
Ahukini Makai Subdivision 
Proposed 49-lot Subdivision 
TMK: (4) 3-7-002: 001 (por.) 
Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

Mr. Hull: Before going into the report on this, it is a separate agenda item on the full Planning 
Commission Agenda. We don’t have anybody signed up to testify but is there any member of the public 



4 

here that would like to testify on this agenda item? You may approach. Please approach, you have three-
minutes for testimony. Can you state your name for the record, and you have three-minutes for testimony. 

Mr. Kaniela Matsushima: Aloha, my name is Kaniela Kaleikaumaka Matsushima, o' Hanamā'ulu mai au, 
I’m from Hanamā'ulu Valley. I spent my entire life in this valley with my kūpuna, swimming in the 
streams, planting kalo, and fishing in the bay. Today I cannot swim in that river because of the pollution. 
A little of my history and my ties to this valley, my dad is Kimo, who has been leasing these lands from 
Hanamā'ulu for over 30-years, why because we come from Roslyn Kaimi, we come from Maui Keo, we 
come from Benjamin Wahinealoha Keo, and Keo himself. Keo Konohiki of the entire Hanamā'ulu Valley, 
and our ohana bloodline has been there carrying on the Konohiki kuleana since the time of Kaikio'ewa, 
regardless of the plantation history, and with multiple land commission awards throughout this valley that 
are ohana to me, and the entire Puna District being under great-great grandaunt, Princess Kamamalu, I’m 
here to stand to oppose these proposed developments. While most of our ohana was kicked off their lands, 
I stand here in gratitude today, to say that we, the descendants of Keo lineage are still here. Once again, I 
do not approve, I oppose these developments of coming, the Ahukini Makai, the Wailani, and the Ahukini 
Mauka. The only way my dad saw fitting was to keep our family in this lands, was through a lease and 
over the years, due to changes of the land from ag to development, we’ve seen the drainage, we’ve seen 
the 3 culverts that come down into Hanamā'ulu Valley, the rubbish that you see, if you guys ever saw the 
culvert and what comes down that valley, you would think that is the Līhu'e Refuse Station, which is the 
Kaua'i Dump. Questions we ask is, water, where the water going come from? From my understanding, the 
farmers that are on that land, that Grove Farm wants to develop, those farmers don’t even have water, 
enough water to water their crops, so how are they going to supply water for that development, that’s a 
question I ask. Sewage, the Hanamā'ulu sewage is one of the worst on the island, that sewage is already 
maxed out, it has been maxed out prior to Ho'oluana, the development if you’re not familiar with it, on 
the Wailua side of Hanamā'ulu Valley, and that pump station down in Kapaia, that pump station supplies 
all Hanamā'ulu, down that Kapaia Hill, and that pump has malfunctioned so many times and thousands of 
gallons of raw sewage has spilled into that stream where we get kalo growing, we get animals that drink 
that water, and Hanamā'ulu Stream and the bay, is the dirtiest, most bacteria filled on this island. You can 
look on the Surfrider Foundation for the reports. Traffic and evacuation, these developments, the Ahukini 
Makai, and the Ahukini Mauka, and the Wailani will create the worse traffic Kaua'i will ever see in its 
lifetime, worse than the Kapa'a traffic, I don’t know about you guys, but I don’t like sitting in that traffic. 

Mr. Hull: Three minutes, sir. If you could wrap up your testimony. 

Mr. Matsushima: Okay, I’ll wrap it up. Thank you. And then drainage, I talked about the drainage 
already, so I ask you, to please rethink these developments. Keep Hanamā'ulu agricultural, the way 
supposed to be, and let’s all work together to restore the damages done over the last hundred years, and a 
place where we all, all of us in this room can proudly say, this is Hanamā'ulu Valley and we helped 
restore this place for our kids and our future because the choices that we make today affects not only me, 
but your kids and your keiki, your mo'opunas, your grandkids forever, and this three developments that is 
coming up we cannot go back on it. Mahalo. Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you for your testimony. 

Mr. Hull: Is there anyone else who would like to testify on this agenda item? Please approach. If you 
could state your name for the record and you have three minutes for testimony. 

Ms. Kayla Matsushima: Aloha, my name is Kayla Matsushima, on the record I’m speaking today to 
oppose the three upcoming developments, the subdivisions most, especially. I oppose all three projects 
being opposed by Visionary LLC, and Hailimoi LLC, also known as Grove Farm. Why are we still 
considering more subdivisions on Kaua'i? Have we all not come to the conclusion yet, that we don’t have 



5 

a housing crisis, we have a failure and lack of regulations on housing. Have we not learned from other 
subdivision proposals that we cannot add any more housing like this, if we are first able to address the 
problems that already exist. It wasn’t that long ago that the Kapa'a subdivision project got stopped and 
now this…all the issues that were brought forward with that project remain the same here, if not worse. 
Whether you come at it from the angle of wastewater treatment, drainage, traffic, emergency evacuation, 
lack of housing regulations, paving over ag land, I see problems from every angle. And when I zoom out 
further and deeper into the kānaka maoli lands, I feel into wai, water usage, how this process will require 
a lot of water which lead to more water diversions. I feel into all the land commission awards and royal 
patents that remain in these areas and the ohana that will be affected by a project like this. I feel into iwi 
kūpuna, native Hawaiian ancestral burials, the cemeteries, and ancestral bones of my husbands’ ohana 
and many ohana laid to rest in the valley, and even how this project could potentially affect cultural 
gathering practices downstream, all of it matters and all of it from the way I see it will be negatively 
impacted by additional development, there’s no way around that. Hanamā'ulu River is inundated with the 
negative effects of over development from every angle and to add an additional burden by permitting 
subdivisions in the surrounding areas is a burden the families of Hanamā'ulu Valley do not deserve to 
carry any longer, they’ve dealt with enough. It is your department that truly can make or break the future 
of Kaua'i and in the last two years alone many of the decisions, not all but many, had been made by the 
Planning Department that will have lasting negative impacts for generations to come. Our generation and 
the seven to twenty-one generations that come after ours do not approve of projects like this that add 
burden. We don’t want to have to clean up the mess that’s being because the people that have the 
opportunity to protect Kaua'i are not. We are coming forward to provide the foresight that is sometimes 
lacking, and we all have the opportunity to say enough is enough. If we continue down this path of over 
development, I’m afraid Kaua'i will never be the same. Please don’t add to the list of mistakes that we 
can’t go back on, and they cannot be undone. Mahalo for your time and aloha. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Is there anyone else that would like to testify on this agenda item? If you could state your name 
for the record and you have three minutes for testimony. 

Ms. Nakai'elua Villatora: Aloha mai kakou, o’ Nakai'elua Villatora, ko’u inoa on the record. (Speaking 
Hawaiian). So, I wanted you folks, I wanted to address my testimony on the Special Management Area 
Use Permit for the zoning of the Nāwiliwili area to Hanamā'ulu area, and I wanted to talk on behalf of my 
ancestors that are from the ahupuaʻa of Kalapakī and the ʻili ʻāina of kiʻo lepo, so I wanted to just give 
you a back story about my ancestry and my ohana that have struggled through the idea of development 
and progress here in Hawai'i on Kauaʻi, so my ohana, the (inaudible) ohana that originated in Kalapakī 
and was there prior to the hotel being built lived on the `aina and thrived for many generations before the 
coming of the kānaka keʻokeʻo, the missionaries who have been there, who had decided to change that 
landscape to become one of the many places to inhabit this island style, this tourist attraction, and it was 
my family who had the last house, last building there when the hotel was constructed. And I wasn’t really 
going to speak on this but my kūpunas really urging me for you guys to understand the decisions that this 
Department makes affects everyone and I wanted you folks to see, look at my children’s face, that this is 
the lives that you will be affecting for the future and decisions that you make today and the days coming 
will continuously, either benefit you folks or disadvantage us, and that’s how we see it as kānaka, is that 
we are not able to practice our culture and traditional rites of fishing, and my family, especially in 
Kalapakī area and the Hanamā'ulu ahupuaʻa were keen fisherman and fisherwomen, and we would collect 
it and gather it from many places in the streams and the mountains there and it was such a diverse area in 
those ahupuaʻas, and it was so bountiful in the ages of my kūpuna and there’s many, many records in 
newspaper articles about that stories and nowadays, how many times you seen people fish in the waters of 
Kalapakī, fish or swam in the waters of Hanamā'ulu, we all know it’s polluted. There’s no gathering there, 
if you want to stay healthy, and that’s what I’m trying to understand and make other people understand 



6 

that development doesn’t always mean progress and thank you so much for your time and I hope that you 
folks really make a good decision on whether or to continue development in these particular areas that are 
heavily affected by that. Mahalo nui. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Ms. Villatora: Would you like to say something? What would you like to say? Bubs, come up. A prayer? 
Well, my son would like to…for us to have a prayer, and our prayer coming here was for us to really have 
folks be convicted by 'Io our supreme god to have you folks understand and realize, let the truth be 
spoken and continue to make good decisions for the benefit of everyone not just a select few. Mahalo. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Is there anyone else that would like to testify on this agenda item? 

Ms. Kanani Kagawa Fu: Aloha and good morning, Commissioners and Chair DeGracia. Kanani Kagawa 
Fu, those that weren’t in the previous testimony, excuse me, in the previous Subdivision Committee. Born 
and raised in Anahola, grew up there and then located to Hanamā'ulu, where my family home is, raised 
my children, and now working between Hanamā'ulu and Koloa area. Today I provide my testimony in the 
capacity of a resident, in the capacity of a kānaka maoli, as a resident, both of Anahola and of 
Hanamā'ulu. The concern that I have with this subdivision before you and this process, is just that it 
lacked one criteria, which is a completion and analysis of the Ka Pa`akai Analysis, which as you’ve seen 
today in the (inaudible) hour we’ve had testimony come forward that is significant to this area. I too, have 
received information of my ohana and our ties here, which then created this nexus into this meeting today. 
It is always okay. My father had this saying, when in doubt, just say no, and if there’s any doubt in your 
guys’ capacity to do your fiduciary duty to grant this subdivision with the lack of the Ka Pa`akai Analysis 
completed and before you, I would ask that you take that into consideration today. The analysis does 
provide the framework for the Commission to do the right thing. It does provide you guys with the 
framework to hear in a written way. All developers before us had to do it, I wear both hats (inaudible) do 
it, so that’s what I believe for me as a resident would satisfy and put that at ease. I sit here representing 
myself, but also other family members who did not want to come forward to testify on this matter. Before 
I leave, again I reiterate to the Planning Commission and to the Commissioners that we defer this until we 
can really, really, if you have any doubt, you should defer it, and I leave you with that. Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Calling, is there anyone in the audience that would like to testify on this agenda item as a 
member of the public? Seeing none. 

Mr. Ako: Mr. Chair, before we get into the Committee Reports, regarding the subdivisions, is it possible 
for us to enter into executive session on this issue? 

Chair DeGracia: Sure. I’ll entertain a motion to go into executive session. 

Ms. Streufert: I move to go into executive session. 

Ms. Cox: I second. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 



7 

Chair DeGracia: Pursuant to Hawaii Revised Statutes Sections 92-4 and 92-5(a)(4), the purpose of this 
executive session is to consult with the County's legal counsel on questions, issues, status, and procedural 
matters. This consultation involves consideration of the powers, duties, privileges, immunities, and/or 
liabilities of the Commission and the County as they relate to the following matters:  

Subdivision Application No. S-2005-41 
Visionary LLC. DBA Lihu'e Land Company 
Ahukini Makai Subdivision 
Proposed 49-lot Subdivision 
TMK: (4) 3-7-002: 001 (por.) 
Hanama'ulu, Lihu'e, Kaua'i 

Chair DeGracia: Motion on the floor is to go into executive session. We’ll take a voice vote. All in favor 
say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose? Hearing none, before we go in, how much time? 15 
minutes? 

Mr. Hull: Probably. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, so we’ll go into executive session to reconvene in approximately 15 minutes. 

Commission went into Executive Session at 9:45 a.m. 
 Commission returned to Open Session at 10:36 a.m. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, time is 10:36, I’d like to call the commission meeting back to order, and to the 
public, thank you very much for your patience, there’s a lot to discuss. At this time, Commissioners, 
before we take any actions and motions on accepting this Subdivision Committee Report, do we have any 
discussions? Or would you like to have any discussion on this agenda item? Being that there’s been a 
whole bunch of information and testimonies from… 

Mr. Ako: If I can, Mr. Chair. Sitting in as the Chair for the Subdivision Committee meeting, we did go 
ahead and have discussions regarding the permit, in the Ahukini area regarding the industrial area, and we 
think we had some discussion on that and yet as we come to this portion of the meeting here, where it 
referred to the entire Commission itself having had new testimony on it, I think there’s been new 
information that has been passed on to hear that I think we’d like to consider. I know a lot of times going 
back into some of the testimonies that come out, I know part of the criticism has always been, we come 
up here for what, and it’s a matter of, we come up here, we spill our guts out and then come 30 seconds 
later it’s done like that without any real major consideration on it, so I think this one because of what has 
been testified to the entire Commission here, new information, I think I will have a different view and 
approach on this issue at this time. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, Commissioner Ako, and then for myself, in addition to new information and 
testimony, there’s also, I personally felt that there’s some requirements in this application concerning the 
Ka Pa`akai O Ka`Aina Analysis that I’d feel a lot more comfortable if it was completed before taking 
action on it. 

Ms. Cox: I think it was also helpful to have the executive session, so we had learned from the attorney 
what our job as a full commission at this point is, what our options were, so that was helpful to know 
since we heard additional testimony. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, before I move forward, I’d like to invite the applicant back up. 



8 

Mr. David Hinazumi: Good morning, David Hinazumi on behalf of Visionary. 

Chair DeGracia: Good morning, David. Commissioners, any questions? I have, I’d like to reserve it, 
unless you guys have any at the moment. Just to clear the air, I believe I sat in the Subdivision 
Committee, and I overheard, I guess a commitment towards completing a Ka Pa`akai O Ka`Aina Analysis 
moving forward. Just a question, you guys have a time frame or has that been set in motion already? 

Mr. Hinazumi: Yes, so just a little bit of history, again, this is an old subdivision, unfortunately from 
2005, at the time of subdivision there was no requirement to do the Ka Pa`akai, of course recently there’s 
a much larger focus on finishing the Ka Pa`akai, so even though it wasn’t a requirement we still went 
ahead and ordered a Ka Pa`akai to be done, so it’s in progress right now, there’s been two rounds of 
outreach, there has been some input coming in, I believe some of the input is kind of been in relation to 
some of the testimony that you’ve heard today. Throughout today, yes, we’ve been given new information 
as well and our commitment is to finish that Ka Pa`akai Analysis. We’ve got additional people that we’ve 
been made aware of that should also be consulted throughout the process. The consultant did have a fairly 
lengthy list of people that they already did the outreach to and as we get more information there’s 
outreach that we will do, so we are committed to finish the Ka Pa`akai Analysis for this project. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, thank you. Commissioners, any questions, comments for the applicant, anything 
further? 

Ms. Streufert: If this is already in progress, when do you anticipate that this would be completed? 

Mr. Hinazumi: Unfortunately, we’re not quite sure yet, of course, what I mentioned as for new 
information of additional people to speak to, we’ll get that process going as soon as possible, (inaudible) 
right after this meeting or by tomorrow, start working on getting those additional contacts, hopefully we 
can get the input in a reasonable time, I couldn’t tell you what that is but as soon as can, yes we want to 
complete it because this analysis we’re doing it for other subdivisions as well, that we want to get them 
finished. 

Ms. Streufert: One final question from me, if we were to approve this subdivision application, and you’re 
continuing this Ka Pa`akai Analysis, during the time between now and when you complete it, what kind 
of work would you do on the land? Would all work stop until it’s been completed? 

Mr. Hinazumi: There’s no work to be done immediately after subdivision approval is granted, it will take 
some time before any construction could occur as there’s steps that need to be taken, and yes, we want to 
complete this Ka Pa`akai to make sure there’s, within the industrial area where construction will occur 
and there will be disturbances to the ground, we want to make sure we’re going to be clear. We’ve gone 
through SHPD, there was an inventory study done, we want to get the additional information from this Ka 
Pa`akai Analysis in those areas. There is a remainder parcel that is created out of this subdivision, that is 
the cliff side, overlooking Hanamā'ulu Bay, and that area we know, we’ve been aware that that is an area 
of definite interest, we want to make sure that we take a look at that area and see what can be done to 
preserve that.  

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, anything further for the applicant? Okay, David any last comments for 
this Commission? 

Mr. Hinazumi: No. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, thank you. 



9 

Ms. Streufert: Okay, I think then that I’m ready to propose a motion. 

Ms. Otsuka: Thank you. 

Ms. Streufert: Based on the information that we have received today and the testimonies that we have 
received, I move that we refer this application back to the Subdivision Committee until there is a 
completed Ka Pa`akai Analysis and based upon what I heard just now it may have any impact upon the 
time frame because they were not going to do anything until it was completed anyway. 

Ms. Cox: I will the second the motion. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners, motion we have on the floor is to refer it back to the Subdivision 
Committee to address the Ka Pa`akai O Ka`Aina Analysis. Could we get a roll call vote, Mr. Clerk? 
Actually, any further discussion before we take a vote? 

Ms. Cox: Is it important that we put in the motion that they are waiting for a completed Ka Pa`akai 
Analysis? You said that… 

Chair DeGracia: Yeah, I believe… 

Ms. Cox: …but Francis (inaudible) restated it, so I just wanted to make sure that it is, that the sub 
committee going to waiting for a completed Ka Pa`akai Analysis and then… 

Mr. Hull: It will be reflected by the motion maker. 

Ms. Cox: Okay, thank you. 

Mr. Ako: If anything, Mr. Chair, I’d just like to thank those that came out to testify on this issue over here 
and hopefully it makes a difference in terms of why people come out and hopefully this will encourage 
other people to come out also. 

Chair DeGracia: Good point, Commissioner. Nothing further. Mr. Clerk? 

Mr. Hull: Roll call. Commissioner Ako? 

Mr. Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox? 

Ms. Cox: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka? 

Ms. Otsuka: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 

Ms. Streufert: Aye. 



10 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0.  

UNFINISHED BUSINESS (For Action) 

In the Matter of Planning Director Kaaina S. Hull's Petition to revoke Applicant Bula Tree House 
LLC Use Permit U-90-38 and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-90-51 (former Mark Daniells art 
gallery approved in 1990), and Use Permit U-19-78 and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-78-28 
(former Diane Daniells pre-school approved in 1978) for failure to comply with conditions of 
approval by the Planning Commission and Issue an Order to Show Cause and Set Hearing; 
Memorandum in Support of Petition; Declaration of Kaaina S. Hull; Notice of Meeting; 
Certificate of Service, TMK (4) 5-5-004: 23, Hanalei, Kaua'i. [Deferred 2/14/2023, Deferred 
4/11/2023.] 

Mr. Hull: This is petition for revocation that you folks received from myself several months ago. It was 
not received in time to place it on the agenda and transmit it to you ahead of time of the meeting, but you 
folks are all in possession of a stipulated revocation of the subject permits from the applicant’s 
representative, Ian Jung. The Department has reviewed the stipulated agreement and are fine with the 
stipulated agreement. Being that you folks have just received it, I know you folks read it, ultimately the 
Department is asking for a deferral until the next Planning Commission meeting for you folks to review it 
if necessary and if there’s any proposed amendments, if not, I’m getting quizzical looks, that some of you 
folks are maybe willing to take action today, I have no problem taking action today, we are in agreement 
with the stipulated agreement draft. You may want to ask the attorney representing the applicant if he’s 
okay with action today, otherwise if any individual wants deferral on this item, to further review, the 
Department has no objections to that as well.  

Mr. Ian Jung: Good morning, Commission, Ian Jung on behalf of Bula Tree LLC. I actually drafted the 
proposed stipulation, so if you want to sign it today that’s fine with us, and I’ve been in contact with the, 
one of the complainants and I gave them an opportunity to review it and I got an email saying that they’re 
fine with the approach and the terminology. Essentially there’s two older entitlements that were 
associated with this property, one with a regard to a pre-school operation that is no longer in use and there 
other one for a small 288 square foot little commercial space that’s been used for an art gallery, which we 
worked with the Planning Department and the complainant to try and cease the use by December 31st of 
year, 2023, and based on those terms of the stipulated revocation, the operation would cease by that date, 
on or before that date, so they had a new tenant come in and they want to just give them time to wrap up 
operations. So, I did speak with the Deputy County Attorney if they want time, it’s fine with us but if you 
guys are fine with the draft now, once it’s signed by the Planning Director, we will sign it and the 
Commission, I believe signs it thereafter. And it basically functions like a stipulated finding of fact, 
conclusions of law, decision and order, so just a formal mechanism to terminate the permit on the records. 

Mr. Hull: Just a little further background, if you recall, this is an art studio that was supposed to be 
temporary in nature has been operating for years, and without the associated school use that was 
occurring there previously that was considered an accessory too, so the Department did finally make a 
move this past year to look at revocation of those permits, and quite honestly, in a contested case hearing, 
revocation proceedings would take a minimum of a year and a half to possibly two years, with the 
applicants right, should they choose to do so to appeal on up to the further court system, so Mr. Jung 
coming in here with a proposed stipulated agreement to end that within this calendar year is a much 
quicker resolution than what could get to contested case, which is why the Departments amendable to it. 



11 

Ms. Otsuka: It’s nice for me to be able to see, so on page 5, it does state, tenant to cease the art gallery use 
on or before December 31st. 2023. So, it’s nice for me to see, visually. 

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any questions? Comments?  

Ms. Streufert: So, the Department is in agreement with the stipulated? 

Mr. Hull: Yes. I guess if there are no further questions for the owner’s representative or the Department, it 
is an agenda item, we should ask for public testimony.  

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, Ian. 

Mr. Jung: Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Is there anybody in the public who wishes to testify on this agenda item? 

Mr. Hull: Sorry, we’ve been dinged enough by OIP. 

Chair DeGracia: Hearing none. Commissioners, I’m willing to receive a motion for this agenda item, 
whether to defer it or to approve the stipulated revocation of use permit. 

Ms. Otsuka: So, it’s approve not accept? Approve? 

Mr. Hull: Approve. 

Ms. Cox: I’ll make a motion to approve the stipulated revocation of Use Permit U-90-38 and Class IV 
Zoning Permit Z-IV-90-51 and Use Permit U-19-78 and Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-78-28, that was 
brought to us today. 

Ms. Otsuka: Second. 

Ms. Cox: Or do I have to say something else? 

Deputy County Attorney Chris Donahoe: Just also the findings and facts. 

Ms. Cox: Findings that support conclusions of law and decision and order Exhibits A through D. 

Ms. Otsuka: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay, Commissioners motion is on the floor to approve the stipulated revocation of Use 
Permit and other stuff. We’ll take a roll call vote, Mr. Clerk. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako? 

Mr. Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox? 

Ms. Cox: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 



12 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka? 

Ms. Otsuka: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 

Ms. Streufert: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0. 

NEW BUSINESS (For Action) 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT (SMA(U)-2023-10), CLASS IV ZONING 
PERMIT (Z-IV-2023-10), USE PERMIT (U-2023-7) to allow construction of public shared use 
path extending from Nawiliwili Park to Ahukini Landing and associated improvements involving 
a new comfort station, drainage ways, protective fencing and paved parking area, and 
SHORELINE SETBACK VARIANCE PERMIT (SSV-2023-1) to deviate from the shoreline 
setback requirement involving properties along makai side of the Lihue Airport, further identified 
as Tax Map Keys: 3-5-001:004, 005, 008, 009, 085, 092, 102, 128, 158 & 160; 3-7-002:001 
(Por.) and affecting a total area of approx. 9.2 acres = County of Kaua'i, Department of Public 
Works. [Director's Report Received 4/25/2023.] 

Mr. Hull: Before turning it over to Romio. We don’t have anybody signed up; we closed the agency 
hearing but it is a separate agenda item. Is there any member of the public that would like to testify on this 
agenda item? Seeing none, I’ll turn it over to Romio for the Directors Report pertaining to this matter. 

Staff Planner Romio Idica: Aloha, Chair and Commissioners. 

Mr. Idica read the Summary, Project Data, Project Description and Use, Additional Findings, 
Preliminary Evaluation, and Preliminary Conclusion sections of the Director’s Report for the 
record (on file with the Planning Department). 

Mr. Idica: That concludes my brief summary of the Director’s Report. Before I read the recommendations 
are there any questions from the Chair or Commissioners?  

Ms. Streufert: I do have a couple of questions. This bike path which is something that we all would like to 
see completed, goes over very sensitive areas, pass very close to the airport, pass a radar surveillance, 
there’s radar ESR, it’s on page 24, and they have worked with the DOT, the FAA, as well as the TSA and 
air traffic control but is there any specific written document that says that all of these entities have agreed 
to this and that have agreed that this is not a safety issue. 

Mr. Idica: We have not received any formal documentation from Dot Airports, TSA, or FAA. We haven’t 
received any formal letters or comments. The applicant did however complete some meeting with DOT 
Airports and TSA, and they have some written comments from those agencies, but nothing formally 
written to the Department or the applicant.  



13 

Ms. Streufert: Because the radar station is apparently outside the perimeter of the airport, so it’s not 
protected in any way, but the pull boxes are, or they will be modified so that they can be locked against 
vandalism and theft but there’s nothing about the radar station that’s out there, which I think is a pretty 
important piece of our safety, and while I don’t think that…this is one of those issues where there’s, I 
think a low risk right now, but a high consequence if something were to happen, but once this goes on to 
the internet and it will, once it becomes a bike path, there will be lots of people out there and there’s no, I 
think protection right now for that radar station which is outside of that. Who has control of that when it is 
outside of the perimeter of the airport? 

Mr. Idica: That I’m not sure. I would have to do some research and probably get back to you and the 
Commissioners. 

Mr. Hull: We can also ask the applicant, if they can provide any further insight into that particular 
concern. 

Ms. Cox: I have two questions. One of them is because we just got the Department of Waters comments 
this morning. I haven’t seen them before and they did mention that there is no water out to the parcel and 
isn’t going to be a comfort station at Ninini Point, can you just speak to that. 

Mr. Idica: I would like to defer to the applicant regarding that and what source of infrastructure there is 
out there right now. 

Ms. Cox: Okay, and then this one I think you can answer but I’m not sure, and that is the drainage 3 that’s 
going to have the long bridge that is 25-feet deviation from what it should be. Is there any danger…I can’t 
picture exactly where it is, but could you speak to the danger of coastal erosion. 

Mr. Idica: Right now, the existing shoreline is a rocky shore, it’s about a 50-foot-high cliff bluff, so, there 
is erosion, rocky shores are not indestructible. There is erosion but it’s very, very minimum, unless there 
is a catastrophic event that would pull the whole cliff down to the ocean the Department feels because this 
is a public access area and yes, we do not take a deviation from our shoreline setbacks to kindly or easily, 
but we feel that it is necessary to place that bridge in that particular area because of the topography and 
the existing landscape to avoid any extra grating or excavation. 

Ms. Cox: Okay, thank you, Romio. 

Mr. Hull: I’ll just add to that too because it’s a good question, Commissioner and as the path gets 
expanded it’s continuously one of our points of concern. When the original paths in Wailua and Kapaʻa 
were built or even designed, the State of Hawai'i and definitely (inaudible) the County of Kauaʻi did not 
have the studies concerning coastal erosion and sea-level rise at that time. Now having those studies, that 
path has been put in places that are extremely susceptible to coastal hazards, and there’s definitely a good 
discussion and debate and dialogue that needs to occur around public facilities, proximity to the coastline 
versus private structures. Private structures close proximity to erodible shoreline that’s just bad idea 
because they’re going to have to seawall it and that will make a coastal beach access gone, but from a 
public facilities park aspect, the park itself, park facilities are intended to create close proximity access to 
what are sometimes, hazardous areas. Having said that though, your general park, you need to get those 
restrooms and park facilities close to the beach because that’s why the people are going to go to that park, 
that’s the purpose of the park. When you’re looking at a bike path or multi-mobile path I should say, I 
think we definitely in reviewing these new applications, have learned our lesson from the original path, 
saying, yes, the path can serve a very wonderful public purpose, but having a path next to an erodible 
shoreline, a sandy erodible shoreline, you need to consider moving that path away so can address and 
accommodate that coastal erosion, so pretty much in the past five years that has been one of our key 



14 

focus. Luckily for this proposal there are not many sandy areas, really it’s mostly all rocky shorelines, and 
like I said, those areas that the path is being proposed, like the previous one you folks reviewed last year 
as well as this one, our position has been, if it’s going to be near a sandy shoreline, you need to be located 
at a distance that can accommodate for erosion without having to necessarily either remove the path and 
certainly not create a seawall to erase that beach. 

Ms. Cox: Thank you.  

Chair DeGracia: Commissioners, any further questions for the Department? No? 

Mr. Hull: I’m not sure if you guys wanted to bring the applicant up for… 

Chair DeGracia: Yes. We can have the applicant’s representative. 

Mr. Jim Niermann: Good morning, Commissioners. I’m Jim Niermann with R.M. Towill Corporation on 
behalf of the Department of Public Works. Should I launch in? 

Chair DeGracia: Yes, please. 

Mr. Niermann: Okay, didn’t know if you wanted me to (inaudible) questions. Okay, see if I can share 
screen here and get this going. Fortunately, I get to spare you a lot of the presentation because Romio 
covered it. Here we go. So, as he mentioned, I’ll kind of go through quickly through the first half of this 
then we can get to the need of the questions that we’ve been discussing. As he mentioned, we’re Segment 
6 of Ke Ala Hele Makālae and these are all of the segments, we’re down here and our original scope of 
work, so we’re focused in right now on Phase A of Segment 6. The original scope of work for Segment 6 
is Ahukini to Nawiliwili Harbor to Līhu'e and the project purpose, obviously there are multi-fold to 
develop a multimodal path system to connect both regionally as well locally alternatives to internal 
combustion of automobile transportation, create a nice recreation amenity for both the residents and the 
visitors to Kauaʻi to promote healthy lifestyles, to build island resiliency by providing this alternative 
mode of transportation or a infrastructure to support alternative modes of transportation and this speaks to 
the, right now as far as connecting these communities the highway doesn’t have facility other than for 
internal combustion vehicle other than automobiles, so if you want to get from point A to point B, you’re 
taking your chances or you’re either brave, stupid, or skilled or a little combination of all three to navigate 
the highway to get through this particular 16-mile area. Then in addition on the subject of resiliency this 
may sound far fetched in some circles but in the potential future where we may have a more volatile 
energy markets where gas prices may compel more and more people who have already seen it quite a bit 
to get out of their cars or to make hard choices about transportation and having an alternative mode of 
transportation would support the resiliency to be able get from point A to point B without having to rely 
on an automobile or a gas powered automobile. This is our overall Segment 6, kind of our initial 
objectives. I’ll kind of go through this. As you can see all the dash lines in there, that was a total scope of 
Segment 6 and we're focused in on Phase A, which this we might need to clarify a little bit because 
Segment E and F, I think, are not part of this application. That's why you don't see them on the screen 
here, I think, E and F we were initially considering including them, but those would have connected the 
back of the Kauaʻi Marriott down to Nawiliwili Park, two separate sections here. So, everything in yellow 
here is what's being proposed to be developed by the county. The blue, that’s Segment B and D, those 
will be developed by Timbers Resorts, so separate. And (inaudible) should be looking down here, 
hopefully the colors are coming through, but the blue highlight is the SMA area of the 17,000 linear feet 
of path that's within the SMA, about 8,000 of that is within the conservation district as well, and that's 
essentially stretching from right here at this point, which is the drainageway 3, where the new bridge is 
proposed, that prefabricated bridge. You can see the cursor here, so right here all the way to right here this 
is all the conservation segment. There are few places like in drainageway 4, it dips out a little bit, and I 



15 

think there’s one or two others where the conservation line and the SMA line don’t exactly align. Zoning, 
I know Romio mentioned, but we have a little bit of the blue down here is the Ag, Conservation is the 
yellow, we're actually all on the makai of Ahukini Road, down at Ahukini Point. We go into the IG STP 
zoning in the gray around the airport, conservation when we drop, dip back down into this parcel, which 
is county owned, and then once we leave the SMA, here, we're into open zoning. The SMA does not 
include, I just want to point out, doesn't include the very end of Ninini Point. That is outside of the SMA, 
and that's where it's the comfort station is proposed, but we will speak of that, we’ll provide some more 
description of that. State Land Use Districts, so we're in urban, industrial, and Ag, there’s a little bit of Ag 
down here, in the red, urban is the orange, I'm sorry red is conservation, urban orange, and then the green 
is Ag. Okay, back to this but we're gonna come back and rephrase this, I can come back to this if the 
Commission is interested. This is basically a timeline of the project, but I don't wanna get lost in the 
weeds of this, it's been a long process, we started in 2007. We have quite a few delays that we're mostly 
related waiting for the Federal (inaudible) agencies and State to work through the NHPA 106 process. 
Okay, moving down, so path improvements as you mentioned, we're proposing a 10-to-12-foot path 
wherever feasible and 8 feet where we're constrained, including across that prefabricated bridge. Some of 
the statistics up there that 17,000 linear feet within the SMA for Segment A, so the only two segments, 
I’ll go back to this drawing, that are in the SMA, is Segment A, from Ahukini Point or Ahukini Landing 
up to Ninini Point and then a short portion, about 1200 linear feet is Ahukini Road, Segment G. The rest 
of Segment C, and the others are outside of the SMA. These are just some examples from the Lydgate 
Project of the type of improvements that are being proposed. The most substantial, probably 
improvements between Ahukini Landing and Ninini Point, setting aside the comfort station, would be 
interpretive signage, you know, the more kiosk type of signage, otherwise it's all either just path or more 
informational signage on poles, kind of like more utility signage. Bollards, so at four locations, actually, I 
think, might’ve had five locations, I apologize, confusing with drainageways. One of the issues that came 
up from day 1 of the project was access to the fishing sites along the shoreline, which are currently 
accessed by the dirt road, that public access dirt road that circles the airport, they’re numerous roads, or 
just little turn offs that provide vehicle access almost down to the shoreline where people fish, so we're 
preserving five of those access points for motor vehicle access. All segments to the shoreline would 
remain open, and for the most part the path will be or actually entirely would be on the side of the makai 
side of that existing dirt road providing access so where are the driveways have to come across, we’re 
proposing some type of bollard just to protect, prevent vehicles from getting onto the paved pathway, and 
just to protect the users of the path from motor vehicle traffic across the pathway and these are just some 
examples we understand those had to be designed to prevent easy (inaudible) I know those could get 
moved pretty. These are just a focus on the four drainageways, two of which are outside of the SMA, 
that’s drainageway 1 and 2, starting on the north end. What we're proposing is to come up to the existing 
airport perimeter road and use the existing culverts. We've only done the preliminary alignment and the 
basis of design, right now we don't anticipate needing to widen those two culverts, but that's still a 
possibility that they would have to be widened to accommodate the path, looks like there’s enough room 
in those two, and then once we're across them, we're diving up and down, basically getting right back to 
the shoreline as quickly as we can, and I'll come back to drainageway 2 and runway 21 in a sec. 
Drainageway 3 is where the bridge is proposed, a 140 foot bridge, so a couple of things that we’re setting 
the location of that bridge, one, as Romio said, the primary reason is, where the topography, where the 
path wants to go or should go to minimizing the amount of grating, we are also aligning the path, one to 
get it as close to the shoreline as we could, so part of that was to move it as far away from the airport as 
we could, and this was in response to the comments from both the Federal Airport or Federal Aviation 
Authorities, as well as the State, and then also to, it kind of push down by the shoreline and then we 
pushed it back outside of the shoreline setback. Initially we had an alignment that was even closer to the 
shorelines, we moved that out of the setback. I think that the bridge was in the same place just because of 
the topography, but that's what you're seeing in the approximate location here. Of the bridge crossing, the 
existing dirt road access, there's another access road right here that's also used, so we're trying to stay 
away from that road as well, and then drainageway 4, we come up again outside of the 60-foot shoreline 



16 

setback and intersect with the existing dirt road, and the plan at this location, which is within the SMA, is 
to expand that road on the mauka side, either through a retaining wall or through embankment and then 
shift the road mauka and keep the pathway along the existing road alignment, and then drop back down 
closer to the shoreline as we proceed. These are just photos of drainageway 1 and 2, the crossings there, 
so it looks like there's plenty of room to accommodate both the path as well as the roadway. Just a 
preliminary schematic of the bridge abutments just showing a 140-foot range across, so as Romio said, 
about 75 feet setback from the certified shoreline, and we're at an elevation of about 55 feet above sea 
level with the abutments, so we're staying outside of the VE inundation and set pretty far back in terms of 
potential for effect from erosion. And drainageway crossing 4, this is what it looks like. This is the closest 
we get to the sand, and probably the biggest concern for erosion along this stretch of coastline. In the 
analysis that we did, and in talking to the folks at (inaudible) Chip Fletchers crew, they didn't do an 
analysis of this segment of shoreline, it’s generally considered to be stable as stable as shorelines come in 
the State. And then the sketch below in that drawing makai is on the top, mauka is on the bottom. The 
gray one here is the path, and that's following the edge of…so right at this point you can see the cursor 
there, that's where the existing culvert comes out, so be holding that line, not going any further makai of 
the exiting improvements and then shifting everything on the mauka side. And then just wanted to point 
out at Ninini Point, the lighthouse was proposed out there, this again, is a concept drawing, the design 
might look something different, but the comfort station is proposed to be located on a former site of the 
caretaker's house, where that existing foundation was, and then having some type of pave or gravel 
parking area and a turnaround. Everything in the light green there, is outside of the SMA, so most of that 
those improvements would be outside of the SMA, but that's what's conceived. The sketch below I think 
has been used in a couple of other segments. We know that this is one of the conditions, it was part of the 
NHPA 106 and the (inaudible) mitigation commitments by the county, was when it comes time to design 
a comfort station and develop the interpretative programming for that area, additional consultation will 
have to occur both with SHPD, Historic Kauaʻi Foundation, Kauaʻi Historic Preservation Review 
Committee, as well as the native Hawaiian organizations who expressed interest in participating, so that 
will be the outcome of another consultation process. And just for the record, also the mitigation 
commitments, both on that particular part of the development as well as an overall interpretive 
programming also require a consultation with those groups. Let's see, environment, I’ll kind of go through 
this more quickly than it deserves, but we have, this is just an example of some of the fishing access that I 
mentioned here on the left. We do have the path crossing the stabilized slope, that portion that used to be 
a dump, that was then stabilized with geofiber/geotextile, and the path that’s crossing that stabilized 
portion in this area, and then just an image of the rocky shoreline, this is pretty characteristic of the 
shoreline there. From this vantage, the path would be up above the top of the bluff here, this is more of a 
kind of a visual of the environment. Flora and fauna in the area there are numerous protected species, 
primarily (inaudible) fauna, but others as well. So, there are four that are in danger, the Nēnē, Koloa,  
'Alae 'ula, 'Alae ke'oke'o, 'ua'u kani, oh no, I'm sorry, the 'ua'u kani is not. Those are all listed species, or 
they're not endangered, but they are listed and protected, and that’s the wedge-tailed shearwater, the 
petrel, Newell Shearwater, also the Hawaiian hoary bat as possible, monk seals, we know pull up on the 
sand pocket beaches, green sea turtles and hawksbill turtles as well. There was no endangered flora found 
in the area and there's no critical habitat identified according to both DLNR and Fish and Wildlife Service 
and no (inaudible). So, the mitigation, though, is essentially for the Nēnē and the shearwater nesting that's 
at the south end of the runway, kind of between Ninini Point and the Timbers Resort, is to fence that area 
off to prevent dogs on the trail from accessing the ground nests, and then also there would be no lighting 
other than at the comfort station and any lighting would be shielded and angled downwards, so the normal 
mitigation for shielding, lighting, and other than that, it's limited to informational and interpretive signage 
for the echo environmental resources and ecosystem function there. Historic and cultural resources, 
there's quite a bit on this coastline. So, there are approximately, depending on how you break them up, 
from the clusters, but there are approximately 25 total in the area. Within our Phase A area. Nine of those 
were considered significant and five were recommended for particular mitigation, the remainder where it 
was mostly the significance was for data recovery, but the highlighted ones here, which are identified 



17 

here, consisted of a (inaudible) in placement, there were two terraces, habitation, identified as habitation 
areas, there are rock terraces, and there was one potential burial site, and the background in the burial site 
was it was a mounds of stones, `ili`ili stones, the initial interpretation by the field archaeologists was 
either a push pile or potential burial, and it was treated as potential burial and the mitigation commitments 
follow through on that. The subsequent interpretation right now is that that might have been an 
overzealous interpretation, but nobody knows, but the recommendation was to pull the recommendation 
for a burial treatment plan and preservation, not make it a requirement, and to avoid that site altogether, 
but these are specifically identified in the mitigation commitments to avoid these by some distance 
between 20 and 50 feet, and that's what's showing in the path of alignment here. Let's see, Maintenance a 
Monitoring, probably well known to you, but Public Works and Parks and Rec would be responsible for 
maintenance of the path and then security the DPR Park Rangers, and then HPD would be called in if 
necessary, and then DLNR in and around the airport, the Federal agencies as necessary, and then overall 
construction costs within the SMA it’s about, I'm gonna say, 6 million. I'm squinting, yes, and just shy of 
13 million outside of the SMA, for a total just of 19 million is the estimated construction costs for this 
Phase A. I already talked about path benefits. So, I want to go back and just talk quickly, well not quickly, 
but speak about the airport, the airport concerns. Okay, so early in the process, we had, we did have 
meetings with TSA, FAA, Air Traffic Control, DOT Airports, Homeland Security, they were all part of 
the consultation for this is as we were preparing EA. The concern that they had was, of course, proximity 
to the airport and proximity to the navigational aids. Their request was to stay as far away from those as 
possible, for the navigational aids, he said, 200 feet if you can, which is what we tried to do by moving 
the pathway in certain locations. There was also, I think, DOT Air initially the state DOT Airports, 
initially said, avoid using the airport perimeter road, and it was avoid it, if you can, stay away from it, if 
you can. They prefer that, for us to stay off of it. They subsequently, just recently, the alignment you see 
here, they approved in the form of a right of entry agreement, so that is an executed document that has 
this path alignment where we touch on those two drainageways, 1 and 2. Come back up, so they’re good 
with this alignment. Generally, those agencies, not just generally, but specifically and generally they were 
supportive of the project, TSA in particular, their opinion was, if you put the path there, you're gonna 
have more good people in the area with smartphones, keeping an eye on things, so that was the response 
that they had. We have the meetings notes documented in our correspondence back to them we did get a 
response from FAA and the ATC, the Air Traffic Control saying no further comment. We didn't receive 
any final comment from the TSA Homeland Security or, actually DOT we've been working with them 
continuously through this, so as far as the impact, I think the main concern was out at Ninini Point, here I 
think the…sorry it’s not showing too well on here but this is actually the path, so somewhere back up in 
here, I think we're closer, we maybe a little closer than 200 feet to the radar at the end of Ninini Point, but 
that was also part of the discussions with the DOT Air and with Air Traffic Control, and FAA, that this is 
where the path has to go because we have a pinch point in this location, and they understood that, they 
just said, stay as far away from those features as you can. With that I'll just save a breath, pause and 
happy to answer any questions. 

Ms. Cox: What about the water at the comfort station? 

Mr. Niermann: Oh, yeah, you’re correct, there is no water system out to the comfort station, so the 
comfort station, the furthest we got in concept was either, it would at least be composting toilets, or a new 
water line would have to be brought in from Ninini Point Street, so that would be determined during 
design. 

Ms. Streufert: I have a question about security, you were saying, with the ASR. You have a security that’s 
around the pull-boxes. 

Mr. Niermann: Yeah. 



18 

Ms. Streufert: But nothing around the ASR, which is the Airport Surveillance Radar, and you said you’re 
about 200 feet away from it, is that correct? 

Mr. Niermann: Yes, that was the distance that they were desiring that we be from that. 

Ms. Streufert: You've talked to all of these agencies in consultation, but do you have anything in writing 
from them that says that they agree with this, or they approve of it? 

Mr. Niermann: We don’t have a…only from the FAA and ATT and ATC, so from the Federal…DOT Air 
only…let’s see…we don't have something that says like, we agreed with this precise alignment. We do 
have the letter from them that was in their comments on the EA, and then we have the executed right of 
entry for this path alignment. 

Ms. Streufert: How long would it take to get a written agreement from them or a written approval? 

Mr. Niermann: From DOT Air? 

Ms. Streufert: From all of these people and to include Homeland Security and KEMA, for instance, I 
would think would have an impact on this too, and the reason for saying is because in the State of Hawai'i 
there are very few airports that are above sea level, Kauaʻi is one of the only ones in the whole state, so if 
anything were to happen, Kauaʻi would be the entry point, and yet we're not securing this to the point 
where the surveillance radar is protected. I understand that more eyes in this area are good, I kind of get 
that, but the problem with it, is that once this is identified on the internet, and it will be because it's very 
beautiful and you have done a really good job of presenting all of the good points about or the scenic 
points about it, it will be on the internet, and there will be a lot more people there who we would not 
know, who they are or anything like that. Right now, it's primarily for locals that go through there, but 
when it gets opened up we have no clue, and frankly, I’m a little concerned only because of what I’ve 
read about people having all of these TikTok challenges and everything else, and maybe it’s overblown, 
I'm not sure because I'm really not on to the social media, but even one, it’s called a low risk. Sorry about 
that, but even one, all it takes is one right, when you're on the other side of it, when you’re on the 
protective side of it, you have to be vigilant all the time for anyone who wants to create havoc, it only 
takes one time. So, it's a low risk, but a high consequence of anything where it happened to that radar 
station or anything else. Is there any mitigation plan for that radar station, or even for the lighthouse for 
example, has been thought of, like you’ve done it for the pull-boxes, and how long would it take to get a 
written approval from all of these agencies to approve the pathway? And the reason for asking this is 
because I really don't know enough about this, but I do know that there could be security risks and I 
would like to make sure that everyone who is involved in this has approved it before we get to the point 
where we are approving it because we're not the experts on this. 

Mr. Niermann: So, to answer your question directly about how long, I don’t know because… 

Mr. Hull: Sorry, if I could just briefly interrupt…if you wouldn’t mind stopping share screen and we can 
turn on our video, sorry. Go ahead, sorry. 

Mr. Niermann: I was gonna say, I don't know how long that would take, because all the agencies, even in 
any given season, they have different speeds with which they respond. DOT Airports has been excellent 
in this past year in working through the right of entry, and then signing off on the application form which 
they have to do as the landowner or the authority with control over those lands. So, we and as far as 
getting an official approval letter we kind of assume we have that by the no objection, by the no further 
comment from FAA and ATC, as well as the right of entry that the airports approved, that DOT Air 
approved because they go through their internal review as well for issues of security and the fact that it's a 



19 

public access now so we were improving the security of that. I know, your point is well taken though, it'll 
be on the internet, there's good to be much increased traffic that won't just be, you know, the people who 
can access the bumpy dirt road, you know, and handle that, so if yeah, so, that I guess the response is I 
don't know how long it would take, it definitely would take some time, it might go very quickly, or it 
might get, you know, bogged down. I know when we did the initial consultation with those agencies we 
started at the Summer of 2008 and concluded in May of 2009, so it was a little less than, it was about 
eight months maybe getting them all together. 

Ms. Streufert: 2008 to 2009 is what, 15 years ago. 

Mr. Niermann: Yeah. 

Ms. Streufert: Conditions have changed since then in terms of the internet and what kinds of risks that we 
take. Is there any plan to get the approval from these agencies? It's different to have a consultation, 
because you have different kinds of people at table, and then when you have to have approval and a 
written document, you've got an official seal that says we have seen this and we approve it, and that’s 
very different from saying in a meeting, yeah, sounds like a good idea. 

Mr. Hull: I'll just interject real quickly to Commissioner. I definitely hear the concerns being raised, but 
also to raise that, they may not legally be able to get approval from some of these agencies in that, say the 
Department is consulted on an array of different issues, if it's not an actual application and it’s a property 
owner, the Planning Department could never say, we hereby approve of this project, and so, some of these 
agencies that are being listed may have internal mechanisms that say they can't use the phrase approval, 
but I think to your point, though, that if there's a desire to specifically list this concern about public access 
or proximity to sensitive assets that that could possibly be highlighted and transmitted to these agencies. 
But I just wanted to raise that, he may not be able to get an actual approval letter. 

Mr. Niermann: I also just wanted to add on to make the point, that it wasn't just a simple, informal 
consultation sounds good, and nobody disagreed, and the donuts were delicious. It was more formal than 
that, and those consultations, this was the consult early and often. That was a very diligent effort to, as a 
foundation for our EA, our 343 EA, so as we went through that process, it was long time ago, 2008, 2009, 
the final EA didn't get published till 2017, and I hope I'm not digging myself a hole about these timelines, 
we can go back to that to that one. When the final EA was published, it was also, of course, distributed to 
those agencies specifically because of their involvement in the development of the plans and the plans 
responded to their comments and their input by shifting the path by adding certain features, so there's a lot 
of diligence involved in that through the final EA. The final EA didn’t document any objections or 
concerns, and it was consistent with the concerns that they initially raised, and our responses to those 
concerns. 

Ms. Streufert: So, who owns the ASR? 

Mr. Niermann: Actually, I don't know. It's either FAA or ATC, but I think the land it's on, it's under 
DOT’s jurisdiction. 

Ms. Streufert: I’m not really concerned about the land so much as I’m concerned the safety and security 
because it is a radar station for the airport. 

Mr. Niermann: Yeah, then it’s FAA and Air Traffic Control are the two that… 

Ms. Streufert: If we were to defer this until you had some, at least a written either agreement, doesn’t 
have to be approval, but agreement or something like that, would that set you back? 



20 

Mr. Niermann: It would, yes. Right now, the project is Federally funded, and the Federal Highways 
Administration is carefully watching the schedule. The project was delayed for quite a while as, and I can 
go back to that, to that timeline slide, if anybody wants to, and a lot of that had to do with just the 
coordination among the agencies to get through, the first hold up was NHP issues, back in 2012, related to 
Wailua and other areas that required Federal level guidance to trickle down to Federal Highways to then 
to come down to the State and the County, and then there were other delays that related to that same 
process they were procedural, at any rate because of those delays Federal Highways was very concerned 
about further delays to the project. I know DPW was concerned about Federal Highways saying this 
project is gonna forever be stuck and they would then ask for the funds that they've contributed to the 
project back and the County would on the hook for reimbursing the Federal government, Federal 
Highways Administration. I know that's not a sound basis for doing planning to say we're just a we're not 
gonna fulfill something, if we were to delay by six months or eight months, I know it would be a 
tremendous concern, and would cause ripples back to the Federal Highway folks that are overseeing this, 
and the State folks that are overseeing the, that their funds are being channeled through, so I don't know if 
there's a way to crafted it as a condition that would be my first, you know, hope or plea, that is was a 
condition of the SMA, but then that goes back to the Director's concern that what is it that we can expect 
to get from those agencies, is it just, no objection? You know kind of…is something more formal of a no 
objection versus a, we approve or some type of design review. Ordinarily projects around the airports, if 
you have vertical structures, there's a preconstruction evaluation form that you have to submit to the FAA, 
and then they take into account all of the aspects of impacts and navigation. It's mostly on navigation, I'm 
not so sure about security actually (inaudible). Anyways, so that'd be, my plea would be to try to advance 
it and maybe craft a condition if that’s at all possible. 

Ms. Streufert: If one were to voice this concern would that, would the Departments preference be for a 
condition or a deferral. Until there’s not approval necessarily but at least an agreement from these 
different agencies. 

Mr. Hull: You know the Department would have no problem with, say a deferral for, say, a month or two, 
I’m not sure that addresses the applicant’s timeline. I know, 6 to 8 months is very concerning to them. 
The other option that I just quickly jotted it down, a possible condition, of course I'm not sure if it gets to 
Commissioner Streufert’s concerns or might be overly burdensome to the applicant’s process, but I can 
read it out for discussion purposes. 

Ms. Cox: Let’s hear it. 

Mr. Hull: Prior to building permit approval, the applicants shall secure affirmation from the FAA and the 
ATC, otherwise Air Traffic Control, that security of the radar site will not become compromised by the 
proposed project. 

Ms. Streufert: Could we include DOT as well as Homeland Security? And whatever, I think those are the 
only agencies, correct? DOT, TSA, FAA, Air Traffic Control those are the ones that were listed in your 
application. This is not to say that I disagree with this, I do agree with this whole concept, I like the idea 
of a bike path, just not really sure about security and for me that’s one of the primary concerns because 
we are part of public safety as well as building and zoning permits. 

Mr. Niermann: I don't mean to treat your comments lightly at all, either or to, of course I've got a 
(inaudible) that's wishing things for, of course, but also, you know, our ethic on this has been diligence all 
the way. One of the things we're trying to good to hear to, and I know that’s been a little bit, I won't say 
tattered, but the amount of time it's taken to get through is, you know, time marches on, so we do want to 
do the right thing to do this correctly. While you were in the executive session, I was speaking to the 
young family from Hanamā'ulu, who testified earlier, about well, are you here to oppose the bike path, or 



21 

the subdivision, and they raised their concerns about bike paths, in general, you know it’s all kind of part 
of the same parcel, and I was like, okay, how do I soothe my conscience tonight, this particular project, at 
least we're somewhat fortunate in that location, and that we don't have the same level, there's a lot of 
history there's a lot of archaeology, but we don't have the same level of sensitivity as other segments of 
the path. The land that the path goes through is either State owned or it's County owned, and that County 
parcel along the shoreline was fortunately the county saw the value of that when we started the project 
that was owned by product developer and the county was able to trade, and transfer that land and acquire 
it to keep it as undeveloped park land, so we don’t have that kind of development pressure. The concern 
that they raised was, first come the paths, then come the hotels, and that comes all the stuff that builds up 
alongside of it, and then pretty soon you don't recognize your neighbor anymore, so there's still concerns 
that they raised about the path, some of which we heard through the process about access to fishing, over 
burdening of resource in the area. Security didn't come up for the airport, but that was one that it’s most 
definitely a valid concern. So, that's balanced against the opportunity to create, you know, a beneficial 
public infrastructure, public resource, and that, you know those decisions are always fraught (inaudible). 

Ms. Streufert: There's no perfect decision on this thing. It’s just, but there are alternate paths I think that 
could be taken, that would be going through that area behind the Marriott or Sonesta or whatever it’s 
called now, (inaudible) that way, so I’m not sure it has to stop, it’s just a question of, from my 
perspective, it’s just a question of security. 

Mr. Niermann: Okay. 

Ms. Cox: Was that condition that Ka'aina just read. Was that something that you would be able to live 
with or not? 

Mr. Niermann: As far as getting affirmation from those agencies, I think we can go back and see what 
they're able. Yeah, my only concern would be, can we over promise something that they can deliver, but 
as far as going back and getting confirmation of those agency (inaudible). 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, I jotted down a few more and I’m not sure if it’s amenable to Commissioner Streufert’s 
concerns, but I jotted a little bit more down, so I can read it further. And the only reason I jotted down 
when we were going through this, no objection interpretation is as a county agency, our Department gets 
queried a far amount to make determinations above and beyond what we legally or even policy wise are 
comfortable affirming and so, we do get requests ad nauseam to go beyond no objection and my statement 
in a lot of these projects to the staff is, that’s all this applicant is getting, we’re aware of the project, if we 
had objections we would object, they’re not getting a letter of support from us, they’re not getting a letter 
of robust recommendations or acceptance of it, we have to take in to aspect, among other things, various 
liabilities that our statements can make, and so sometimes I’m just trying to put myself in, can he get 
what’s being asked of, there are many times our Department is like, no all you’re getting is no objection, 
sorry, take it or leave it, and so anyways, I’ve crafted up what may be amenable, I'm not saying that it is 
necessarily what we're recommending, but as a possible path forward. Prior to building permit approval, 
the applicant shall secure affirmations from the FAA, the ATC, DOT Airports, TSA, and Homeland 
Security that security of the radar will not be compromised by the proposed project. Followed up with, no 
communication received from any of these agencies within 60 days, shall be consider a no objection, and 
the permit may proceed, and the applicant may proceed to building permit review. 

Ms. Streufert: Could we include in that not just the ARS, but the airport security? In there, that they are… 

Mr. Hull: DOT Airports. So, I have FAA, ATC, DOT Airports, TSA, and Homeland Security. 

Ms. Streufert: No, I meant to…you’re talking about protecting the ASR. 



22 

Mr. Hull: Oh, sorry. 

Ms. Streufert: ASR and airport security. 

Mr. Hull: The security of the radar and the ASR? 

Ms. Streufert: Yes, and also could this be a written affirmation as opposed to a telephonic affirmation or 
email whatever… 

Mr. Niermann: Email is… 

Ms. Streufert: Whatever is written, there’s a signature on that that says, we have seen this, and we’ve 
approved it. 

Mr. Niermann: Okay. 

Ms. Streufert: We've noticed it, we've looked at it, and on the basis of the security. 

Mr. Hull: Prior to building permit approval, the applicants shall secure written affirmation from the FAA, 
the ATC, the DOT Airports, the TSA, Homeland Security, that security of the radar and ASR will not be 
compromised by the proposed project. No communication received by any of these agencies within 60 
days, shall be consider no objection, and the applicant may proceed to building permit review. 

Mr. Ornellas: Yeah, I think it's encouraging that none of these agencies have objected. They’re well aware 
of what's happening. 

Mr. Niermann: Yeah. 

Mr. Ornellas: I think, and I think in a climate of heightened security, they would simply close the path. 

Ms. Cox: Yes. 

Mr. Ornellas: That’s my own opinion. I mean, that whole coastline, I recall when they were lined with 
pillboxes, left over from World War II, that entire stretch, so, it is a sensitive area, no question about it. 
But I think the fact that none of these agencies objected is indicative of their level of concern. 

Mr. Niermann: They certainly wanted to make sure that in the event of an incident and then in just case 
they were talking about a malicious incident, that we have the ability to lock down the path or to gate the 
path, and so at those points of connection with the roadway, that was where they identified the gates to be 
placed, so that was part of it. But yeah, that's reactive. I know you're suggesting proactive. 

Ms. Streufert: Proactive. 

Mr. Niermann: But yeah, they're aware of it. We may have had just half leverage that, you know 
represented on the folks, it's a pretty extensive number of people that were in those meetings, and there 
was that general sense, I don't know overstate it, but it was a real general sense that pretty more good 
people in the area was the benefit, the security. 

Mr. Ornellas: My concern when the stretch from Kapaʻa heading out to Kuna Bay, my concern was one 
of security, see you gonna have people walking on this path there’s no where around it, there’s some 
lonely stretches, which I use the path, and I was presently surprised that there were no incidences. I think 
the good drives out the bad in this case. 



23 

Mr. Niermann: I will say, outside of Phase A, sorry to prolong the meeting, initially when we were 
looking at the entirety of Segment 6, we were looking at an alternative to go up Nawiliwili Stream all the 
way to here, and so we basically trespassed our way up the stream and then we have one meeting, we had 
a public meeting where we heard a little bit of feedback, that we contacted all the owners on that stream, 
and we tried the idea of, well you're worried about bad things happening, you know, more good people on 
the path, they weren’t buying it in that case, and we abandoned that approach, but I'm a believer that 
probably in certain contexts, maybe going through jungle and forest not as much security benefit, but I 
think in these wide open spaces there's stuff that I know TSA wasn't happy that was happening down 
there right (inaudible) time we were meeting with them anyways around the airport. So yeah, that 
condition would be acceptable. I mean, I’m sure that would be alright. 

Mr. Hull: Without any (inaudible), I know Romio has proposed conditions of approval, it’s been a long 
day, if you’d like him to read each and every single one of them or have them accept it as part of the 
report, I think we have just for the record the last condition of approval be added as I read on to the 
record, as a recommendation to this body.  

Ms. Streufert: (Inaudible, microphone not on). I move that we accept the planning Department's 
recommendations, with the additional condition. 

Chair DeGracia: Before I move forward, is there anybody in the audience that would like to testify on this 
agenda item before we make a motion?  

Mr. Ako: Mr. Chair, can I ask one question of the applicant? I’m so sorry. This is not a sensitive topic at 
all, and not technical in anything, but the vision is to create this to connect with the existing path that’s 
there right now. 

Mr. Niermann: Yes, yes, and it's also like each of the segments, I think, and this one probably more so 
than the others are also envisioned as stand-alone segments, if that makes sense. But yes, the envision was 
that it creates regional corridor all the way up to Anahola.  

Mr. Ako: So, this will eventually connect up to, down by Lydgate Park, that walkway there. 

Mr. Niermann: Yeah, exactly. 

Mr. Ako: My question is, what is that theory about starting from, I don’t want to tell you my age and all 
of that but (inaudible) the Honolulu viaduct, as they’re doing. They’re starting from two different ends 
and then they meet six feet apart at the top. What is the theory about starting, effect rather than expanding 
from what we have, that's starting from one end and trying to eventually connect up at the other end. 

Mr. Niermann: Various series, but sorry, there's a really good book called The Power Broker, that it's like 
all the dirty tricks of planning, but this is not necessarily a dirty trick, I shouldn’t characterize it that way. 
It's a great book, not to learn dirty tricks, but just to see how things get, anyways I’ll shut-up. The theory 
is that you start with the least critical segment, and then you work towards the most critical, because as 
the project goes it builds momentum, and then you can't but built that last segment because you needed it 
to make all the rest of it activated. That's the theory. The stock gap on that, a lot of it has to do with 
Federal Highways and DOT and the concept of segmentation, and that's embedded also in the 343 block 
you know, you can't segment a project to seek it through, you have to look at the totality of environmental 
impact. But if that project has the kind of language we use, is it has its own utility, has its standalone 
function, it has a logical terminus, so if you build it in isolation of all the other stuff, it still has value, it 
still has, it still has its own utility and that's essentially how these larger regional kind of projects are, they 
have to be conceptualized or conceptualized both for funding for both (inaudible) getting through the 



24 

(inaudible) getting through the 343, but from the from the dirty tricks perspective, it’s okay, you start with 
the one that is going to the least controversial, that it kind of builds a… 

Ms. Streufert: Least resistance. 

Mr. Niermann: Yeah. 

Mr. Ako: So, that window you talk about the six-to-eight-month period regarding the putting the Federal 
funds in jeopardy at that point. 

Mr. Niermann: So, I don't want that to be considered a hard, fast date. The concern has been so, we were 
delayed in getting the EA published, and that was held up that for the NHPA 106, getting through that. It 
wasn't that the conditions changed, it wasn't that the consultations, you know, were controversial and 
mired in any issue, it was just the bureaucratic process of going between State agency, the Federal 
agency, and every time we get to a point where one of the agencies is ready to move on the action, there 
were personnel changes, and so a new set of eyes wanted to revisit it and so that was just dragged out ad 
nauseum, and Federal Highways even though they were a party to some extent, they were also looking at 
it saying, hey we’re funding this thing, you had a schedule, could the county commits in the schedule and 
in the contract. You said it was going to be done here then it gets delayed, and there's good rationale, and 
so they improve that they approve it, so, it's just that, since when you look at that timeline from 2007 to 
now, and what are the things that are holding it up? What can we control to move forward? We know that 
just in general, not on this particular subject of six to eight months, but they really been holding the 
DPWs feet to the fire on the schedule and we're living and dying by the schedule now, so there are 
monthly reports, back to Federal Highways, how’s it going? How are we moving forward? And that the 
concern like right now the county is requesting an extension of that schedule, and every time that, you 
can't take it for granted that there's gonna be another extension, at any time they could, you know the 
forces that be at the Federal level, in Washington, or wherever could pull the plug on the project so, we're 
just being very sensitive to the amount of time, you know, we're up against right now to complete the 
project, to commit the funds under the current commitment that the County has to Federal Highways, so 
six to eight months because I was just fine tuning the schedule, and they're saying, we want you to try to 
squeeze another three months out of it, we want you to shorten it, try to finish this and get the 
commitment by the end of 2024. They're still trying to squeeze blood from a stone, so to speak, in 
compressing processes that I just from experience, I know they take a lot of time, and on paper, yes you 
could compress it, but your practice doesn't always work that way right, so if they're asking me to 
compress four months and now, if I say it's gonna be another eight months or we're gonna push out six 
months or eight months then I know that that's going to translate up to with some concern from the 
County, and I'm not the one communicating directly with Federal Highways, this is the County, the 
County reps and the State reps. I hope that answers, I hope I didn’t say too much to get myself in trouble. 

Chair DeGracia: Any further questions for the applicant? Thank you. Please state your name and you 
have three minutes. 

Mr. Kaniela Matsushima: Aloha, my name is Kaniela Kaleikaumaka Matsushima. Thank you for having 
me to speak on this issue. I didn't know in depth to what this bike path was until, and I'm just hearing his 
side of it, and what's gonna to come about it, and his. I have a few concerns, I think we should just make 
aware of, is I grew up on that coastline, I fished my entire life on that coastline. That's probably one of the 
most dangerous coastlines, I think, on the island, beside the Nāpali, just mainly because that's eastside 
always catch that, it’s always rough and we always like pick opihi on that side and there’s a lot of opihi 
because, I just gave away the spot, but a lot of opihi because only the experienced people that know the 
area or can go there, because it's very dangerous and I think just having that bike path there would access, 
the public have access to now would have access to, and majority of the people that use that bike path are 



25 

visitors, tourists that come here, and they may not know how dangerous it is, and then you know they 
might go down there to some selfies at the last rock on the bottom and they get swept away and that’s just 
a liability and more, just dangerous to people in general. So, it is open to fishing and gathering rights, but 
there's only a select few people that actually go there because it's dangerous, but this bike path would 
actually change the subsequent part of the traditional, native Hawaiian practices if this bike path does go 
through there is also a lot of houses and people that live there that actually some of them are my ohana 
and they were displaced from other areas that they were from and they just kept moving around, and I 
think, just kicking them out of some place, and then they having to find somewhere else not really a 
solution to it, so I think you have to take that into account. I'm not sure if any of you ever been on that 
coastline before, but it's like it's really dangerous, and there's like maybe two beaches there and those 
beaches are rarely open like, sandy area, they're normally underwater. There's a lot of big boulders that 
are loose and I just foreseeing this, I can just imagine people like tourists come here and want to come 
and enjoy that place, or just local people that never in the area want to go out on the rocks and get hurt, or 
worse. There's a lot of iwi kupuna in the area, regardless of the plantation area, they’re a little deeper. So, 
that is a main concern. There’s the beach line that he's talking about, Nukoli'i area, there's like numerous 
articles and research on it, that there’s burials all throughout that area. I've been on burial sites of 
desecration, I just don't want to see anymore, so I think there, kind of need to thread lightly on it, but at 
the same time, know what's at play before we actually make decisions on going forward with this, so I 
think just the demographic of who you (inaudible) actually use the bike path. I know he mentioned that he 
used the bike path, but I never used the bike path in my life. 

Mr. Hull: Three minutes. 

Mr. Matsushima: And I don’t see myself using it. Oh, three minutes, okay. But I think we just need a look 
at the demographic of who uses the bike path, and we'll see, I'm just gonna put out there, probably about 
80% is not from here and we can see all the tourists that go to the companies that rent those bicycles out, 
so they will actually make their way to those spots which is actually dangerous. Mahalo for your time and 
thank you. 

Mr. Hull: Thank you. 

Chair DeGracia: Thank you. Any further testimony? Hearing none, recommendation? 

Mr. Hull: Well, we gave the recommendation, and we stand by it, I’m not sure if you wanted to bring the 
applicant up to address any issues that was raised by testimony (inaudible). 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. 

Mr. Niermann: As far as response is known, (inaudible) I didn't wanna speak for you up here with the 
other concerns that you raised, and I don't have a probably satisfactory answers that will satisfy the main 
concern. Our approach then for issues of danger along the shoreline would be essentially information, 
signage, warning signs, but we wouldn't seek to block people from accessing off of the bike path, it would 
make it more accessible, certainly, so I think the, there's no curing stupid and it's that, sorry that was 
really glit making it glib an issue, but I'm just thinking about the blowhole on Oahu, and the guy from 
California who though it’d be great to straddle it and get a picture and he ended up inside of it, and dead 
and then the family wanted to put a grade over it, you know, so there's a certain amount of personal 
responsibility that’s required and certainly signage  the only tool in our toolbox along the shoreline there, 
possibly with the addition of (inaudible) there was, and this is outside of what we're proposing, but 
(inaudible) or konohiki system of lining people on the path and their behaviors on the path, so that's one 
thing. The houseless in the area, that is, that is a concern. It was a concern from day one of the project that 
was brought up and I recall, saying, in the first public meeting is, that's an issue that's much larger than 



26 

the bike path to solve, and then just an encouragement to solve it with compassion, and not just treat it as 
what it is in our process is an nonconformed land use, and when we get to the conservation district use 
permit process which would be the next step after this, it's going to be an issue right? So, they're looking 
at it as nonconforming use, clean it up. What are you going to do to take care of that? And then all the 
other agencies that have a role in that, from DOH, HPD, Health and Human Services, take a part in that 
that's outside of DPW's kind of mandate, so, I don't have an answer for that other than the use down there 
is one of things that puts more of a face on it is, the idea that if these families are displaced from 
Hanamā'ulu and now they're getting pushed over there it's not just an assemblage of the homeless kind of 
faceless down there family members, so there really needs to be a community response, and I don't mean 
to wash my hands with it's lighter than this project, because this project is going to shine a light on it, and 
I think that the resolution of that will, it will have to come up or it will come up at some point before 
project construction and ground breaking. It will probably be, or maybe continued, as a condition of 
some, or a way to address it as a condition in the CDUP, but that’s something that we’ll have to 
collectively look at. Iwi kupuna in the area, very good point, and there’s the stuff we know and there's the 
things that we don't know, you know we've done the AIS, we did find that one rock mound that appeared 
to be, or potentially could be, a burial, and so we avoided it. There was some view by the archaeological 
consultants, that that rocky shoreline is not, certainly not, as it's nice as the (inaudible) sands or I 
shouldn’t say as nice but as typical of burial sites, as the (inaudible) sand deposits that are really prevalent 
along other segments, so we have the usual conditions of, if anything is discovered, if any artifacts, or iwi 
kupuna are encountered during construction then everything stops and the perfect consultations take 
place. What we do know about through that area, were mitigating through avoidance and through signage 
or through and interpretive program. I think one of the other differences is all of these mitigation 
measures, are evolving from a planning perspective, from a community perspective, generationally 
becoming more aware of the language I was using when we were discussing a little bit of this earlier was 
treating historic properties and sites as something of an artifact or more than artifact, and the way that you 
do that then is you bring in the community, that knows that the practice is as part of the program, in that 
conversation that we were having there’s (inaudible), yeah there’s a whole lot of models, there's a whole 
lot of personality driven ideas about it, but there isn't a simple solution on how to make it more than the 
interpretive programming that and are familiar with, signage maybe (inaudible), and then encouraging 
more practices in those locations. And then on the demographics, as a planner, kind of, I think, 
professionally obligated to like every bike path I see, and that's true to some extent, so in this case it is. 
I'm not from Kauaʻi and I would use it as a visitor, but I also view it as for those issues of resiliency of 
providing an alternative to the automobile for people who either can't afford it or in the future may not be 
able to afford it or in the event that there is destruction to the roadways from natural or manmade events, 
there’s redundancy, I think those are all valid reasons from that broader planning horizon or planning 
perspective, so the demographics it's probably very true that it’s mostly visitors coming right now, for 
people recreating on it, locals recreating in there. But, going back to, if you build it, they will come, and 
you know, hopefully, it will become the beneficial infrastructure that the community, to the community 
that it was originally to be. My sermons over. 

Ms. Cox: I have a question, but I think I already know the answer to it, and I guess for both of you, 
Romio as well. So, no one's ever done a study on who's using that bike path because from my…I use it, 
and I see an awful lot of local families using it. I'm not saying there aren’t tourists out there, too, but I see 
a lot of local people using it, so your statement of yeah, it’s probably mostly tourist, I don't know if that's 
true, and I don't know if we're not keeping track of it, we don’t know that.  

Mr. Niermann: Thank you for challenging me on that because I don’t know what I’m talking about on 
that. 

Mr. Hull: Yeah, I would say, I agree with this team as well. Once that connection is made, and it is 
primarily a recreation (inaudible) right now, it is, hands down. One of the concerns, when we were 



27 

watching it and understand that Public Works and Parks are going to have to figure out is once that 
connection is made to Līhu'e, there is no cure to the Kapaʻa crawl coming. There isn't. It is anticipated 
that, either slightly or drastically the amount of traffic that will not be commuter traffic on that asset will 
change. How you navigate that with the advent of ebikes, and the speeds that they can go, and co-existing 
with recreational purposes is something that's gonna to have to be navigated. But yeah, that is something 
that’s being anticipated with the connection between essentially two residential/work areas. 

Mr. Niermann: Just want to say, Kauaʻi it seems more than most places to have the ability to integrate that 
infrastructure, integrate that facility with the community more, and what I mean by that is these concerns 
that were raised, there's no perfect project, there's no satisfying everybody, but some of the concerns 
could be mitigated, certainly with, and I was thinking about Lydgate when we started this, that segment of 
Lydgate with the park and everything that was grassroots all the way, that was taking ownership of the 
project in that area, and the vision was very much alive, is we can do this rather than this is being imposed 
from the outside and this is something disrupt what we've, what's familiar and the things we cherish, so 
making it an asset through not just building it, and then, you know, letting it go, but trying to program it 
in addition to building it and programming with, you know, the voices of the residents in guiding the 
programming. Words are cheap, words are easy, I can sit up here and (inaudible), but that’s just more of 
a, there's an extra need to make a facility like that function for a community by…I’ll just use the word 
programming it again, there’s whether it's adopting a segment, whether it's, you know, having, yeah, I 
mean, I like the idea of a konohiki system in there. My only concern was, when we had that discussion, I 
don't know if you could get the folks in that particular moment to agree on who would be at the top of the 
heap.  

Ms. Streufert: There is a condition in this application, recommendation no.2, which is about 
archaeological findings and, so I think hopefully that will mitigate some of the concerns that have been 
expressed because you may other things, you may not. 

Mr. Niermann: Sure. 

Ms. Streufert: If something is found then it will be protected. 

Mr. Niermann: And to the other point that was raised earlier outside the hearing here, was that there are 
two heiau now along that segment, there’s Ninini Point and there’s Ahukini. I don't think anybody's even 
sure where Ahukini Heiau is, some people maybe sure but I know on the archeological inventory survey it 
was either somewhere in the middle between Ahukini Landing and Ninini Point or it was up above 
Ahukini Landing where the refinery and the train rails were in. So, but the absence of the material 
remains of those sites doesn't diminish the significance of the site to the kānaka maoli community and 
people understand it, so again, going back to how do you create something that's not just an artifact and a 
sign saying, here once stood “X” and it's like, wow try to envision it, that's valuable in its own right, but, 
I'm getting into some kind of…the people that know and having a voice in the programming of the use of 
the facility. Gotta get creative. I don't have any answers. We're processing permits and coming up with 
designs and things, but I think, speaking of those values, we have not (inaudible) to use is important.  

Chair DeGracia: Thank you, Commissioners. Anything further? Any questions for the Department or 
applicant? If not, I’ll entertain a motion. 

Ms. Streufert: I put a motion; I think on the table (inaudible). 

Chair DeGracia: Oh okay. Motions on the floor. 



28 

Ms. Streufert: To approve, or to accept the proposal recommendations of the Department. To include as 
amended with the additional condition. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. 

Ms. Cox: And it was seconded. 

Chair DeGracia: Okay. Motion on the floor is to approve with the amended conditions. We’ll take a roll 
call vote, Mr. Clerk. 

Mr. Hull: Roll call, Mr. Chair. Commissioner Ako? 

Mr. Ako: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Cox? 

Ms. Cox: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Ornellas? 

Mr. Ornellas: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioners Otsuka? 

Ms. Otsuka: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Commissioner Streufert? 

Ms. Streufert: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Chair DeGracia? 

Chair DeGracia: Aye. 

Mr. Hull: Motion passes, Mr. Chair. 6:0. Moving on into, we have no further executive session. Agenda 
Item N. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Mr. Hull: Topics for Future Meetings. We are anticipating the next meeting actually not being as listed 
June 13th, but actually on June 27th. We actually have a fairly light, I really shouldn’t use that phrase. We 
have a limited number of agenda items, I think, one of them, which is going to be a subdivision, also a 
meet the condition of approval of one of the Class IV in south Kauaʻi, Class IV Zoning Permits, and then 
today was tentatively scheduled for the Housing Directors briefing before the Planning Commission, 
ultimately with the calendars of various State and county officials, including but not the limited to the 
Mayor, Governor, the Lima Ola groundbreaking was scheduled for today, so the Housing Director, 
wanted to apologize for not being about to make that briefing but he is set tentatively to appear before us 
on June 27th to give his housing briefing. And that’s what we got a nutshell coming up, if anything you 
folks want to schedule, by all means let us know or the Chair, or the attorney’s office. 

Ms. Otsuka: So, confirming, no meeting on June 13th. 



29 

Mr. Hull: Right now, we say tentatively, unless we receive something in the next week or two that 
necessitates from a timeline standpoint, we have to schedule that meeting. Right now, tentatively there’s 
not anticipated to be a meeting. 

Ms. Otsuka: Okay, how will we be informed? Shan will email. 

Mr. Hull: We’ll let you know within a week whether or not (inaudible). I don’t want to say the likelihood 
given the way todays meeting went, so just…but that’s all we have.  

Chair DeGracia: With that, I’ll entertain a motion to adjourn. 

Mr. Ornellas: So, moved. 

Ms. Streufert: Second. 

Chair DeGracia: We’ll take a voice vote. All in favor say aye. Aye (unanimous voice vote). Oppose? 
Hearing none, motion carries. 6:0. 

Chair DeGracia adjourned the meeting at 12:22 p.m. 

  Respectfully submitted by: 

      _________________________ 

               Lisa Oyama, 
    Commission Support Clerk 

(  ) Approved as circulated (add date of meeting approval). 

(  ) Approved as amended. See minutes of ______________ meeting. 



MATTHEW M. BRACKEN 
County Attorney 
CHRIS DONAHOE 
Deputy County Attorney 
Office of the County Attorney 
4444 Rice Street, Suite 220 
Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766 
Telephone: (808) 241-4930 
Facsimile: (808) 241-6319 
Email: mbracken@kauai.gov 

cdonahoe@kauai.gov 

Attorneys for Respondent 

10267 

9095 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE COUNTY 
OF KAUA'I 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE COUNTY OF KAUAI 

In the Matter of: ) 

) 

) 

Special Management Area Use Permit } 
(SMA(U}-2023-9) to allow construction of a 5 } 
feet high entry gate, water feature, and ) 
associated improvements within the private ) 
road right-of-way serving the Makahuena ) 
Estates Subdivision in Po'ipu, situated along ) 
the makai side of Pe'e Road and ) 
approximately 60 feet south of its intersection ) 
with Pe'e Road, further identified as Tax Map ) 
Key: ( 4) 2-8-021 :078, containing a total area ) 
of approximately 0.946 acres, ) 

} 

} 

MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A, LLC et al., ) 

Petitioners 

VS. 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE 
COUNTY OF KAUAI, 

Respondent. 

) 

) 

) 

) 

} 

) 

) 

____________

) 

7973419,v2 

TMK: ( 4) 2-8-021 :078 

STIPULATION REGARDING SMA USE 
PERMIT SMA(U)-2023-9 AND 
CONSTRUCTION OF A 5 FEET HIGH 
ENTRY GA TE AND TO VACA TE 
CONTESTED CASE HEARING; 
EXHIBIT "A" 

F.1.a.1.
August 8, 2023



STIPULATION REGARDING SMA USE PERMIT SMA(U)-2023-9 AND 

CONSTRUCTION OF A 5 FEET HIGH ENTRY GATE AND TO VACATE 
CONTESTED CASE HEARING 

IT IS HEREBY STIPULATED by and between Petitioners MAK.AHUENA

PREFERRED A, LLC et al. ("Petitioners") and Respondent PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF 

THE COUNTY OF KAUAI ("Department") (collectively the "Parties") that: 

I) This Stipulation addresses Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2023-9

and Petitioners request for construction of a 36 '4" wide x 5' high automated entry

gate, associated water feature, and attendant 5'high x 5'4" wide pedestrian entry

serving the Makahuena Estates Subdivision in Po'ipU, situated along the makai side

of Pe'e Road and approximately 60 feet south of its intersection with Pe'e Road,

further identified as Tax Map Key: (4) 2-8-021 :078, containing a total area of

approximately 0.946 acres ("Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature").

2) The parties wish to settle the pending Contested Case hearing concerning the

Proposed Makahuena Gate.

3) Subject to the following provisions, the Department agrees to recommend approval of

SMA(U)-2023-9:

7973419 v2 

a. The Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature shall be transparent and not

opaque to minimize the potential visual impact as detailed in the Director's report; 

b. The Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature shall remain open daily from

sunrise to sunset. Also, signs shall be posted noting that the gate shall remain open 

from sunrise to sunset; 

c. Signs shall be posted warning the public regarding the potential impacts of having

dogs off leash in the Makahuena Estates Subdivision; 

d. The Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature shall not be higher than the

surrounding rock wall to minimize the potential visual impact as detailed in the 

Director's report; 

e. The Petitioners shall work with the Kauai Fire Department to reconcile and address

any potential negative impact on access by Emergency Services caused by the 

Proposed Makahuena Gates and Water Feature; and 



f The Petitioners shall submit to the Kauai Planning Department for approval the 

architectural renderings for the Proposed Malcahuena Gate attached herein as Exhibit 

"A". 

4) The Parties respectfully request that the Contested Case Hearing in this matter be

vacated.

5) The Parties agree and understand that the terms and conditions of this Stipulation are

subject to approval by the PJanning Commission.

SO STIPULATED: 

DATED: i 1 �-

�� 
CHRIS DONAHOE 

Attorneys for Respondent 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE 
COUNTY OF KAUAI 

DATED: 

A Limited Liability Law Partnership 

Attomey for Petitioners 
MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A, 
LLC et al. 

7973419.v? 

3 

DATED: 

DATED: 7 /12/23 

alZ 
MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A, 
LLC et al. 



f. The Petitioners shall submit to the Kauai Planning Department for approval the

architectural renderings for the Proposed Makahuena Gate attached herein as Exhibit 

"A". 

4) The Parties respectfully request that the Contested Case Hearing in this matter be

vacated.

5) The Parties agree and understand that the terms and conditions of this Stipulation are

subject to approval by the Planning Commission.

SO STIPULATED: 

DATED: 

CHRIS DONAHOE 

Attorneys for Respondent 
PLANNING DEPARTMENT OF THE 
COUNTY OF KAUAI 

DATED: 

MAUNA KEA TRASK 
CADES SCHUTTE 
A Limited Liability Law Partnership 

Attorney for Petitioners 
MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A, 
LLC et al. 

SO APPROVED: 

DATED: 

FRANCIS DEGRACIA 
Chair of KAUAI PLANNING COMMISSION 

7973419.v2 

DATED: 

JODI HIGUCHI SA YEGUSA 
Deputy Planning Director 

DATED: 

MAKAHUENA-PREFERRED A, 
LLC et al. 



EXHIBIT ''A'' 



--=-----::a-

-, 

' 

I 
\ 

I _,,, 

l I
I I 

11 



NRM ARCHITECT, LLC 

NALANI R. MAHELONA AR-15952 
P.O. Box 30923 
Anahola, Kauai, Hawaii 96703 
Telephone: (808) 551-9832 
Email: nalanirose(w,gmail.com 

Architect for Applicants, 
PERALTA, BENSON C. Fee Owner 
PERALTA, ARCELIE A. Fee Owner 

BEFORE THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

OF THE 

COUNTY OF KAUAI 

In The Matter Of The Application ) 
) 

Of ) 
) 

BENSON C. PERALTA and ARCELIE A. ) 
PERALTA, Fee Owners, for a Special ) 
Management Area Permit, for real property ) 
situated at Kapaa, Kauai, Hawaii, described ) 
as Lot 5-B Kapaa Town Lots, identified by ) 
Kauai Tax Map Key No. (4) 4-5-012: 048. ) 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA PERMIT 
SMA(U)-2023-__ _ 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA 

USE PERMIT APPLICATION: EXHIBIT 

LIST; EXHIBITS "A" - "I" 

AUG O 8 2023 

F.2.a.



SECTION 1. 
1.1 
1.2 
1.3 

SECTION2. 
2.1 

2.2 

2.3 

SECTION 3. 

3.1 
3.2 
3.3 
3.4 

SECTION 4. 

4.1 

4.2 

SECTION 5. 
5.1 

SECTION 6 
6.1 
6.2 
6.3 
6.4 
6.5 

SPECIAL MANAGEMENT AREA USE PERMIT 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

APPLICANT/SUBJECT PROPERTY/OWNERS ........................... .1 
Applicant. ........................................................................... 1 
Subject Property .................................................................... 1 
Ownership ........................................................................... 1 

LOCATION LAND USE DESIGNATIONS OF PROPERTY .............. 1 
Location ............................................................................ ! 
Land Use Designation ............................................................. 2 
a. SLUC ............................................................................ 2 
b. Kauai General Plan ............................................................ 2 
c. czo ............................................................................. 2 
d. Development Plan Area ...................................................... 2 
e. Special Management Area ................................................. .2 
f. Shoreline/Shoreline Setback Area ......................................... .3 
g. Heritage Resources ........................................................... 3 
h. Violations ...................................................................... 3 
P1ior Land Use Pennits ........................................................... 3 

PAST, EXISTING AND PROPOSED USES OF 
SUBJECT PROPERTY .......................................................... 3 
Past Uses ............................................................................ 3 
Proposed Use ...................................................................... 4 
Existing Structures ................................... : ........................... .4 
Land Coverage ..................................................................... 4 

DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AND 
IDENTIFICATION OF SURROUNDING LAND .......................... .4 
Location ............................................................................ 4 
Surrounding Uses .................................................................. 5 

PERMITS REQUESTED AND REQUIRED ................................. 5 
SMA Use Permit. ................................................................. 5 

IMPACTS OF DEVELOPMENT ............................................... 6 
Botanical Resources and Wildlife ............................................... 6 
Historical Resources ............................................................... 6 
Air Quality/Noise .................................................................. 6 
Flooding and Drainage ............................................................ 7 
Utilities .............................................................................. 7 
a. Potable Water .................................................................. 7 

i.



6.6 
6.7 
6.8 

6.9 

6.10 
6.11 
6.12 

SECTION 7. 
7.1 

SECTION 8. 
8.1 
8.2 
8.3 

SECTION 9. 
9.1 
9.2 

SECTION 10. 
10.1 
10.2 

SECTION 11. 
11.1 
11.2 
11.3 
11.4 
11.5 
11.6 
11.7 
11.8 
11.9 
11.10 
11.11 
11.12 

SECTION 12. 

b. Electric/Communications ................................................... 7 
Wastewater Treatment and Disposal.. .......................................... 7 
Solid Waste Disposal. ............................................................. 8 
Governmental Services ............................................................ 8 
a. Fire and Police Services ...................................................... 8 
b. Schools ......................................................................... 8 
Economics ........................................................................... 8 
a. Jobs .............................................................................. 8 
b. Housing ......................................................................... 8 
c. Property Values ............................................................... 8 
Population ........................................................................... 8 
Traffic Circulation ................................................................. 9 
Heritage Resources ................................................................. 9 

SLUC CONSIDERATIONS ...................................................... 9 
SLUC Urban District ............................................................... 9 

GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATIONS: ...................................... 9 
Kauai General Plan Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation .......... 9 
Project's Compliance with Kauai General Plan Standards .................... 9 
Project's Compliance with Kauai General Plan Goals and Policies ........ 10 

CZO GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT CONSIDERATIONS ..... 14 
CZO General Commercial District.. ........................................... 14 
Project's Compliance with CZO General Commercial District 
Standards .......................................................................... .15 

KAPAA-WAILUA DEV ELOPMENT PLAN CONSIDERATIONS ...... 15 
Community Plan Goals and Objectives ........................................ 15 
Project's Compliance with Development Plan Standards .................... 16 

SMA CONSIDERATIONS ...................................................... 16 
Recreational Resources .......................................................... 16 
Historic Resources ................................................................ 1 7 
Scenic and Open Space Resources ............................................. 17 
Coastal Ecosystems ............................................................... 18 
Economic Uses .................................................................... 18 
Coastal Hazards ................................................................... 18 
Managing Development/Public Participation ................................. 19 
Beach Protection/Marine Resources ............................................ 19 
Value of Development ............................................................ 19 
Compatibility With Surrounding Uses .......................................... 19 
Project's Impacts Within SMA .................................................. 20 
Project's Compliance with SMA Standards .................................... 20 

HRS CHAPTER 343 (ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 

ii.



12.1 

SECTION 13. 
13.l

SECTION 14. 

STATEMENTS) CONSIDERATIONS ......................................... 22 

HRS Chapter 343 .................................................................. 22 

NATIVE HAWAIIAN ISSUES 
Project's Impacts on Traditional or Cultural Practices ....................... 22 

CONCLUSION .................................................................... 23 

iii.



APPLICATION 

Comes now, Benson C. Peralta and Arcelie A. Peralta, Fee Owners, Applicants in the 

above-captioned proceedings, by and through its architect and authorized representative, hereby 

submits the following Application for a single family residence and associated improvements on 

the property. 

SECTION 1. APPLICAN T /SUBJECT PROPERTY/OWNERS . 

1.1 Applicant. The Applicant is Benson C. Peralta and Arcelie A. Peralta, 

husband and wife. The Applicant has authorized Nalani R. Mahelona, Architect to file this 

Application pursuant to the Applicant's Authorization attached hereto as Exhibit "A ". 

1.2 Subject Property. The property which is the subject matter of this 

Application is a portion of Lot 5-B Kapaa Town Lots, which contains 0.0579 acres (2,520 square 

feet ), and is identified by Kauai Tax Map Key No. ( 4) 4-5-012: 048 ("Subject Property"). A 

legal description of the Subject Property is contained in the Deed attached hereto as Exhibit "B ". 

1.3 Ownership. The Applicant is the owner of the Subject Property, as shown 

in the Deed attached as Exhibit "B ". 

SECTION2. LOCATION LAND USE DESIGNATIONS OF PROPERTY. 

2.1 Location. The Subject Property is located in Kapaa, Kawaihau, Kauai, 

Hawaii, and is shown on the Location Map attached hereto as Exhibit "C-1" and on the Tax Map 

attached as Exhibit "C-2". Territory Of Hawaii Registered Map No. 2450 ofKapaa Town Lots is 

attached as Exhibit "C-3". 

1 



2.2 Land Use Designations. The respective State Land Use Commission 

("SLUC"), Kauai General Plan; County of Kauai Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance ("CZO"), 

and other relevant land use designations for the Subject Property are described as follows: 

a. SLUC. As shown on the State Land Use District Boundary Map

attached as Exhibit "C-4", the Subject Property is located in the SLUC Urban District. The 

subject Property has been located in the SLUC Urban District since the inception of the SLUC 

Districts. 

b. Kauai General Plan. As shown on the General Plan Map attached as

Exhibit "C-5", the Subject Property is located in the Kauai General Plan Neighborhood Center. 

The Subject Property was recently designated from the Urban Center to the newly created 

Neighborhood Center Designation in the Update to the Kauai General Plan (2018). 

c. CZO. As shown on the CZO Map attached as Exhibit "C-6", the

Subject Property is located in the CZO General Commercial District. The Subject Property has 

been located in the CZO General Commercial District since the adoption of the CZO. 

d. Development Plan Area. The Subject Property is located within the

Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area "C", as shown on the CZO Map attached as Exhibit "C-6". 

The Subject Property is located in the High Risk Flood Zone and the Extreme Tsunami 

Evacuation Zone, as shown on the East Kauai Hazard Map (2018) attached as Exhibit "C-7". In 

the future, the Subject Property will soon be part of the East Kauai Development Plan. 

e. Special Management Area. As shown on the Special Management

Area Map attached as Exhibit "C-8", all of the Subject Property is located within the Special 

Management Area ("SMA") of the County of Kauai. The Subject Property has been located 

within the SMA since the adoption of the SMA Rules (December 17, 1979). 

2 



f. Shoreline/Shoreline Setback Area. The Subject Property is not

shoreline property however is located within the 500-foot shoreline setback threshold. The 

applicant will apply for a shoreline setback exemption. The subject property will not affect 

beach processes, impact public beach access, or be affected by or contribute to coastal erosion or 

hazards, excluding natural disasters. There are a total of four properties between the subject 

property and the shoreline. At the shoreline, there occurs an existing seawall. 

g. Heritage Resources. As shown on the Heritage Resources Map

attached as Exhibit "C-9", the Subject Property is located within the East Kauai Planning District 

Boundary (Updated to the Kauai General Plan, 2018). 

h. Violations. There are no known violations on the Subject Property.

There exists two sheds on the Subject Property, one of which a lean-to encroaches the north 

neighboring property, as shown on the Topographical Survey Map attached as Exhibit "D-1". 

2.3 Prior Land Use Permits. The Subject Property is not subject to any prior land use 

permits and conditions. 

SECTION 3. PAST, EXISTING AND PROPOSED USES OF SUBJECT PROPERTY. 

3.1 Past Uses. In the past, a service center once occupied the Subject Property. 

Owned by Kazu Morita, it is unknown when the service center was built. (See Exhibit "E" for 

Real Property Tax Card.) According to a community member, the service center was destroyed 

during Hurricane Iniki. In 1992, as shown in Exhibit "G-2", a letter from the Hawaii Department 

of Health refers to an Underground Storage Closure Report prepared by Nexus Environmental 

Group, Inc. regarding the removal of two 1,000 gallon gasoline underground storage tanks 

(USTs). In 2000, the Solid and Hazardous Waste Branch reviewed the report and concluded that 

3 



the closure and site restoration of the former US Ts indicated no evidence of petroleum 

contamination from the tank or piping system. 

3.2 Proposed Use. The proposed new dwelling will serve as a long-term rental and is 

being built for Benson and Arcelie Peralta. The owner understands that residences are a valuable 

asset to the community. 

3.3 Existing Structures. There are two existing portable storage sheds on the Subject 

Property. There are no known permits for the existing sheds. The sheds have existed prior to the 

owner's purchase of the property. The owner plans on removing the sheds prior to construction 

of the proposed new dwelling. There also occurs an existing 4-foot high wooden fence along the 

north and east and southern property lines. (Refer to Exhibit "D-1 ", Topographic Survey). The 

owner plans on removing the fence prior to construction of the Project. 

3.4 Land Coverage. The total allowable land coverage of the Subject Property is 

2,268 square feet, which is 90% of 2,520 square feet. Currently, the concrete pad which once 

housed the service center covers approximately 900 square feet and asphalt covers approximately 

200 square feet, resulting in approximately 1,100 square feet of land coverage. The existing 

portable sheds are situated over the existing concrete and will be removed prior to construction. 

After completion of the Project, the total land coverage will be approximately 2,206 square feet, 

which is 88% lot coverage. (Refer to Exhibit "F-2", Lot Coverage Calculations). The applicant 

will build over the existing land coverage. The proposed 2,206 square foot lot coverage is 

allowed pursuant to CZO Sec. 8-6.3(g)(2). 

SECTION 4. DESCRIPTION OF SUBJECT PROPERTY AND IDENTIFICATION OF 
SURROUNDING LAND 

4.1 Location. The Subject Property is located in the northern portion ofKapaa Town 

near the Kapaa Neighborhood Center and Ke Ala Hele Makalae bike path. The northern 

4 



property line runs along Kuhio Highway. The southern portion of the Subject Property is 

approximately 250 feet from the ocean. 

4.2 Surrounding Uses. Adjacent to the rear property line and south property line of 

the Subject Property are existing dwellings. The property adjacent to the north property line of 

the Subject Property resides a two-story restaurant. Across the highway is a shopping center 

with retail, a veterinarian and a business center. Other uses in the surrounding area include lunch 

wagons, office buildings, a community park, a public pool and a hotel. There are no Natural 

Area Reserves or Wildlife Refuges or Sanctuaries within or near the Subject Property. 

SECTION 5. PERMITS REQUESTED AND REQUIRED. 

5.1 SMA Use Permit. The development and construction of the following proposed 

improvements on the Subject Property (the "Development") will take place within the SMA: 

a. New Dwelling Unit. The proposed single-family dwelling unit is to be the

first dwelling unit on the Subject Property. (Considered Development for SMA purposes). (See, 

attached Exhibit "F-1 "). 

b. New Concrete Driveway and Driveway Approach (Considered

Development for SMA purposes). (See, attached Exhibit "F-1"). 

c. New Concrete Sidewalk at front of the property and New Permeable

Gravel at rear of property (Considered Development for SMA purposes). (See, attached Exhibit 

"F-1 "). 

d. Related site utilities including County Water service, Electrical and

Telephone service, and County Sewer service. 

e. New 8-foot high Privacy Wall at the rear property line. (See, attached

Exhibit "F-1 "). 

5 



Such activity will constitute "Development" as defined by the Special 

Management Rules and Regulations of the County of Kauai ("SMA Rules"). The total value of 

the Development in the SMA exceeds $500,000. Therefore, the Applicant is requesting the 

Planning Commission to issue a SMA Use Permit (as defined in Section 7.3.C. of the SMA 

Rules) for the Development. The proposed new single-family dwelling unit (2,206 square feet of 

land coverage) will include five (5) bedrooms and eight (8) bathrooms. The new single-family 

dwelling will be three stories with an attic. The first floor will be used as an open parking 

garage. With the exception of the required fire walls at the northern and southern property lines, 

all other walls perpendicular to the storm surge shall be considered breakaway. The rear privacy 

wall shall have flood vents. The Development will comply with all floodway and ocean surge 

design requirements. 

SECTION 6 IMPACTS OF DEVELOPMENT. 

6.1 Botanical Resources and Wildlife. The Subject Property is located in Kapaa 

Town amongst multiple land uses and is not far from the ocean. The Subject Property is 

relatively flat and currently has a coconut tree, areca palms, papayas, spider lilies, bermuda grass 

and non-native shmbs weeds. No impacts to botanical resources and wildlife are anticipated due 

to the mixed uses of the surrounding area. 

6.2 Historical Resources. The Subject Property is not a "Historic Property" as 

defined by HRS Sec.6E-2. 

6.3 Air Quality/Noise. The Development will have little or no impact on the air 

quality and ambient noise levels in the area. Air quality and ambient noise levels may be 

affected at a very minimal level during the Development activities. All vehicles or equipment 

used by the Applicants for the constmction will be properly muffled, housed and maintained to 

6 



reduce noise impacts or emission impacts. The Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and 

State of Hawaii air quality standards will not be exceeded. 

6.4 Flooding and Drainage. The proposed Project is within Flood Zone AE, with a 

base flood elevation of 8.0 mean sea level (msl), as shown on the County of Kauai's flood 

insurance rate map (Flood Insurance Rate Map 1500020204F) attached as Exhibit "C-10". The 

Subject Property is located entirely in the Flood Zone AE and the Project will meet all of the 

requirements of the FloodPlain Management Ordinance of the County of Kauai, as contained in 

Chapter 15, Article 1, of the Kauai County Code, 1987. All drainage resulting from construction 

activities and from the increase in land coverage will be retained on site and subject to best 

management practices. No additional drainage is anticipated to significantly or negatively 

impact the surrounding properties. 

6.5 Utilities. 

a. Potable Water. The Applicant will apply for Water Service for the Subject

Property from the County of Kauai, Department of Water. An application for a new 

water service request shall be approved and certificate of completion of the new water 

meter shall be obtained prior to Building Permit approvals for the Development. 

b. Electric/Communications. The Applicant currently obtains temporary

electric service from Kauai Island Utility Cooperative, and the Applicant shall apply for 

communication services from either Spectrum or Hawaiian Telcom, Inc. An application 

for a new electric meter will be obtained prior to completion of the Development. 

6.6 Wastewater Treatment and Disposal. The Applicant will apply to connect to the 

public sewer system and will obtain approval from the County of Kauai Wastewater Division 

prior to Building Permit approvals for the Development. 

7 



6.7 Solid Waste Disposal. Solid waste collection will be provided by the County of 

Kauai and by private means. Solid waste will be taken to the County's Transfer Stations for 

disposal in the County Landfill. 

6.8 Governmental Services. The Project will have the following impacts on 

governmental services. 

a. Fire and Police Services. Fire and police services in the vicinity are located

in Kapaa and Kealia each approximately one (1) mile from the Subject Property. The 

Project will not significantly increase the need for existing fire and police services. 

b. Schools. The closest schools are Kapaa Middle School located near central

Kapaa Town, and Kapaa Elementary School and Kapaa High School, both located at the 

north end of Kapaa. The Project will not generate any significant additional enrollment. 

6.9 Economics. The Project will have the following economic impacts: 

a. Jobs. The Project will result in the creation of approximately six (6)

temporary job positions (during construction). 

b. Housing. The Project will not result in the need for additional housing, as all

persons working on the Project will be Kauai residents. 

c. Property Values. Since the fair market value of real property is based on the

value of the land and physical improvements, the completion of the Project will increase 

the value of the Subject Property. This will result in an increase in real property taxes on 

the Subject Property, and increase revenues to the County of Kauai. 

6.10 Population. The Project will not result in an increase in population. 

8 



6.11 Traffic Circulation. The major road which services the Subject Property is Kuhio 

Highway. The Project will distribute access to the Subject Property to a single driveway but will 

not in and of itself increase traffic on the roads. 

6.12 Heritage Resources. The Subject Property is located within the East Kauai 

Planning District Boundary (Updated to the Kauai General Plan, 2018). The Heritage Resources 

of Kauai include natural, cultural and scenic resources. The proposed Project will not 

significantly affect any of these resources. 

SECTION 7. SLUC CONSIDERATIONS. 

7.1 SLUC Urban District. The Subject Property is located within the SLUC Urban 

District. Permitted uses in the SLUC Urban District include residential uses. 

SECTION 8. GENERAL PLAN CONSIDERATIONS. 

8.1 Kauai General Plan Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation. The Subject 

Property is located in the Kauai General Plan Neighborhood Center Land Use Designation. As 

stated in the Kauai General Plan (2018): 

"Neighborhood Center is a new designation focused on historic town cores and 

corresponds to existing or future areas appropriate for accommodating infill 

development and growth. Centers consist of a mixed-use core with a cluster of 

retail and service activity, civic spaces and primary destinations, along with 

residential uses. This core area can support an interconnected network of streets 

and blocks that encourage multirnodal transportation access. Centers typically 

comprise a mix of detached and attached buildings between 1-5 stories in height." 

8.2 Project's Compliance with Kaua 'i General Plan Standards. The proposed use of 

the Project is residential, the total height of the building is three (3) stories with an attic and the 

9 



project is considered detached, thereby complying with the Kauai General Plan Standards for 

Neighborhood Center. The development itself will have no significant impact on the 

surrounding environment as the project is compatible with other uses in the area, as well as with 

the surrounding environment. As such, the Project complies with the Kauai General Plan (2018) 

policy in that it helps to identify existing developed areas and lands appropriate for future 

development. In addition, the project compliments the following action objectives of the Kauai 

General Plan: 

"To develop town centers as attractive places to work, live, and play. To develop 

compact, walkable communities consistent with the Future Land Use Map. To 

increase housing opportunities for low- to moderate-income households. To 

support mixed use, higher density, and walkable development in existing towns." 

8.3 Project's Compliance with Kaua'i General Plan's Goals and Policies. The 

proposed Project is in alignment with the following goals and policies of the General Plan, which 

emphasize resilient, healthy, and equitable communities: 

(1) Section 1.3, entitled "Visions and Goals"

(la) Goal #3: "A Healthy and Resilient People" -The General Plan's

Goal #3 seeks to "increase the resilience and vitality of Kauai's communities and 

promote better health outcomes through improving the natural, built, and social 

environment". The proposed Project plays a vital role in providing Kauai's 

community with a healthier built environment through revitalizing towns and 

encouraging affordable housing. The proposed project will set precedence in its 

adaptability to the Sea Levels Rising and therefore is an integral component in the 

community's resiliency. 

10 



(lb) Goal #4: "An Equitable Place, With Opportunity for All" -The

General Plan's Goal #4 aims to "foster diverse and equitable communities" which 

includes providing "access to jobs and housing, and a high quality oflife." The 

general plan recognizes that Kaua'i's high cost of living has pushed local families 

away from Kaua'i. Reversing this trend includes "encouraging and celebrating 

diverse, mixed income neighborhoods." The proposed project aims to provide 

housing that is adequate through it's' proximity to the town center, which directly 

provides access to essential services, transportation and opportunities for 

recreation and enjoyment of shared spaces. The proposed residence in 

maximizing its floor area promotes the General Plan's policies that will help 

Kaua'i provide housing and resource opportunities for all families, including 

multi-generational families, and supports opportunity to all of Kauai's people 

from keiki to kupuna. 

(2) Section 1.4, entitled "Policies to Guide Growth"

(2a) Policy #1: "Manage Growth to Preserve Rural Character" -

The General Plan's Policy #1 highlights the importance in preserving Kauai's 

mral character by appropriately designating "where urban uses belong in order to 

better preserve agricultural lands and open space." The proposed project occurs 

within the North End ofKapa'a Town and is compact and walkable, therefore the 

project promotes the preservation of, and does not negatively affect, the mral 

character of the island. 

(2b) Policy #2: "Provide Local Housing" - The General Plan's Policy 

#2 aims to provide "affordable housing while facilitating a diversity of 

11 



privately-developed housing for local families." The policy also emphasizes the 

"extraordinary urgency" to provide affordable housing for local residents. The 

proposed residence could help relieve the demand for housing that would bear on 

the local housing market and should be considered a key component as one of the 

9,000 housing units that the County plans to help facilitate by the year 2035. The 

cost of the project per square footage averages to approximately $110 per square 

foot, which is substantially lower than the average cost of a typical residence in a 

rural community. This key factor provides the opportunity for the owner to 

construct an affordable house for rental to a multi-generational family and 

therefore fulfills the County's policy. 

(2c) Policy #3: "Recognize the Identity of Kaua'i's individual 

Towns and Districts"- The General Plan's Policy #3 points out that Kauai'i's 

towns are "distinct, each with its own character" and the uniqueness must be 

"celebrated" and "protected". The proposed project is consistent with the unique 

character of other structures within the vicinity, and the design standards of the 

Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area "C" have been implemented to maintain 

such character. 

(2d) Policy #4: "Design Healthy and Complete Neighborhoods"

The General Plan's Policy #4 promotes "access to jobs, commerce, transit, and 

public services" as a means to support healthy and complete neighborhoods, 

amongsts a nation and state that is significantly impacted by health problems 

such as obesity and diabetes due to the "increasing levels of sedentary lifestyles". 

The subject property is within the Neighborhood Center Designation area and the 

12 



proposed residence compliments and accentuates Kapa' a Town as a Healthy and 

Complete Neighborhood which is "safe and convenient to walk, bike, or take 

transit" which allows residents to increase physical activities on a daily basis, 

thereby reducing health risks. Walking, biking, and taking public transportation 

also protects the environment by reducing emissions and the need for costly 

expansion and maintenance of services and roads. 

(2e) Policy #5: "Reduce the Cost of Living"- The General Plan's 

Policy #5 points out reducing the cost of living through "providing a diversity of 

housing types and affordable transportation options". The proposed project is 

directly accessible to the County Bike Path and the Kauai Bus and therefore is 

aligned with the General Plan's promotion of transportation accessibility. 

(2f) Policy #13: "Complete Kauai'i's Shift to Clean Energy"- The 

General Plan's Policy #13 seeks to "Mitigate climate change and reduce carbon 

emissions" through "reductions in energy use and by transforming electricity and 

transportation systems toward the use of clean energy". The proposed project 

will include an accessible roof deck, which will give the opportunity for the 

owner to construct solar panels as an energy alternative. In addition, the 

proposed project's proximity to biking, walking, and public transportation will 

directly assist in the County's goal of reducing carbon emissions and thus 

reducing carbon footprint. 

(2g) Policy #14: "Prepare for Climate Change"- The General Plan's 

Policy #14 urges the County to "Prepare for impacts to the island economy, food 

systems, and infrastructure that will be caused by climate change". Sea level rise 

13 



(SLR) is considered and mandated in the design of the proposed project through 

the General Plan and the Special Management Area. The proposed project has 

been designed to accommodate the predicted three feet seal level rise in addition 

to complying with the coastal hazards regulations. The ground floor parking area 

is elevated to accommodate flood hazards. The upper roof deck will give the 

opportunity for the residence to grow food as a supplement, should vegetative 

food sources be compromised in the future. 

(2h) Policy #17: "Nurture Our Keiki"-The General Plan's Policy #17 

points out the necessity for "actions to promote education, housing, and economic 

opportunity" in order to "keep our keiki from permanently moving away from 

home." The proposed project will promote multi-generational housing for a local 

family, and therefore supports the nurturing of our keiki. 

SECTION 9. CZO GENERAL COMMERCIAL DISTRICT CONSIDERATIONS. 

9.1 CZO General Commercial District. The Project site is located within the CZO 

General Commercial District. Uses in the CZO Commercial District are set forth in CZO Article 

6, which provides in relevant part as follows: 

ARTICLE 6. COMMERCIAL DISTRICTS (C) 
Sec. 8-6.1 Purpose. 
(a) To designate areas suitable for commercial and public or private
business activities distributed so as to supply goods and services to the public in a
convenient and efficient manner.
(b) To relate commercial and business activities to established or projected
transport, utility and community patterns so that they may contribute to the
general health, safety and welfare of the public.
(c) To assure that commercial and business development and uses will not
detract from the environmental qualities of the surrounding areas.

14 



9.2 Project's Compliance with CZO General Commercial District Standards. The 

Subject Property zoning of General Commercial allows for residential dwellings, attached, 

detached or multifamily via a Use Permit per 8.2.4(1)(12) of the County of Kauai Zoning 

Ordinance. The distance of the building from the right.;of-way line of the public street is five (5) 

feet, which is the minimum in the Commercial District. The distance of the building to the side 

property line is zero (0) feet which is the minimum distance for adjacent use districts of 

commercial. The distance of the proposed dwelling to the rear property line is six (6) feet and 

the minimum distance of the building to the rear property line with adjacent use district of 

commercial is zero. The proposed driveway width in the Commercial District is at the minimum 

fourteen (14) feet for one-way traffic. The land coverage on the Subject Property will not exceed 

the allowed 90% land coverage. All uncovered areas shall be landscaped with living plant 

material. Therefore, the project will comply with the CZO General Commercial District 

Development Standards per Section 8-6.3. 

SECTION 10. KAPAA-WAILUA DEVELOPMENT PLAN CONSIDERATIONS. 

10.1 Community Plan Goals and Objectives. The Kapaa-Wailua Development Plan 

Ordinance supplements the Comprehensive Zoning and Subdivision Ordinances in regulating use 

and development within the area of the Subject Property. Section 10-1.3 (d-e) of the 

Kapaa-Wailua Plan Ordinance states the guidelines which are relevant to the Project. The 

Project is intended to be a long-term rental property that maximizes the potential of the limited 

area of the site. The Project is compatible with the environmental, social and cultural needs of 

the Kapaa-Wailua Development Plan area in that it strives to protect the physical and social 

characteristics of the surrounding area within the intent of its design. 

15 



10.2 Project's Compliance with Development Plan Standards. The Project is a 

single-family residence which is allowed in the Kapaa-Wailua Special Planning Area "C", per 

the allowed use in the General Commercial District. The total height of the building is three (3) 

stories with an attic and will not exceed forty (40) feet, plus fifteen (15) feet at the sloped roof. 

The roof colors will not be reflective and the exterior building colors will be submitted to the 

Kapaa-Wailua Improvement Advisory Committee and the Planning Commision for approval. 

Therefore, the Project will comply with the design standards and guidelines of the Kapaa-Wailua 

Special Planning Area "C" as stated in Section 10-1.3(e)(2)(A-C). The Subject Property is 

located in the 3.2 foot anticipated sea level rise area and is therefore subject to the new Special 

Treatment Coastal Edge overlay within the Kapaa-Wailua Development Plan. The proposed 

Project complies with the new Special Treatment Coastal Edge overlay in that the first level is 

free of living area, constructed with breakaway walls and stairs, and allows only parking and 

limited storage to occur. 

SECTION 11. SMA CONSIDERATIONS. 

11.1 Recreational Resources. The project will not adversely affect coastal resources 

uniquely suited for recreational activities that cannot be provided in other areas. The Project will 

rather provide direct access to said resources by allowing the residential use immediate access 

via walking distance to such resources as the bike path, fishing, swimming, surfing, and similar. 

The project will not replace or obstruct any coastal recreational resources as the Project site is 

nested within other sites of similar uses. Such resources of recreational value are not adjacent to 

the site itself, though are close in proximity. The proposed dwelling may expand recreational use 

of the shoreline lands, as residents of the proposed rental will have easy access to fishing, 

surfing, beach-going and swimming. There are a total of three (3) properties between the Kapaa 

16 



Neighborhood Center Park and the Project site. At approximately 150 feet, a total of two 

properties away, lies the County of Kauai Bike Path. Further south at approximately 900 feet 

away is the Kapaa Beach Park. There is no existing public access to the shoreline near or on the 

property, therefore the proposed Project will not affect any public access to recreational. 

resources. 

11.2 Historic Resources. The project site is not within a Federal, State and/or County 

designated historical or cultural district. The Project site is not listed on or nominated to the 

Hawaii or National Register of Historic Places. Since an archaeological survey has not been 

conducted for the project site, there are no submissions to the State Historic Preservation Office 

for review and recommendations for the Project. As shown in Exhibit "D-2", a perimeter survey 

was conducted on December 3, 2018. The survey has not revealed any information on historic or 

archaeological resources. The Project site is not within or near a Hawaiian fishpond. The 

Project is not located within or near an historic settlement area. In addition, the Project is not 

located within or near any cemeteries, burials, heiaus or the like. 

11.3 Scenic and Open Space Resources. The Project site does not abut or affect a 

valued scenic resource or landmark within the Special Management Area. The neighboring 

two-story residence towards the south of the property and a single story residence towards the 

east of the property towards the ocean already hinder direct views of the coastline. There are no 

landmarks adjacent to the Project site. The proposed Project does not affect existing shoreline 

open space and scenic resources. The bike path eastward of the property ensures that existing 

shoreline open space and scenic resources in the area are preserved now and in the future. The 

Project does not involve alteration to natural landforms and existing public views to and along 

the shoreline. The Project is compatible with the visual environment. Located within the center 

17 





construction guidelines set forth by FEMA in accordance with the National Flood Insurance 

Program. The Project site and nearby shoreline areas have not experienced shoreline erosion. At 

four properties over, at approximately 248 feet eastward, occurs an existing man-made seawall 

along the existing shoreline. According to the Hawaii Shoreline Study web map, the annual 

shoreline erosion rate is -2.7 ft./year, or 2.7 foot per year accretion. The National Oceanic and 

Atmospheric Association Sea Level Rise Viewer predicts sea level rise to inundate the Subject 

Property by year 2100 based on a 3.2 foot increase in the sea level. (See, Exhibit "G"). The 

average life expectancy of wood-framed residences is seventy (70) years. Therefore, NOAA 

does not model any impacts to the proposed Project by sea level inundation. 

11. 7 Managing Development/Public Participation. The Project activities on the

Subject Property are complementary to, and consistent with, present and future coastal zone 

developments in this area of Kauai. 

11.8 Beach Protection/Marine Resources. The Project will have no impact on any 

shoreline or beach areas given the distance from the shoreline area, or on any open space areas 

along the shoreline. The Project will not involve any development within the bea�h or coastal 

area which would have any negative impact on marine or coastal resources. The Applicant is not 

aware of any existing fishponds. There are a total of four properties between the Subject site and 

an existing man-made seawall along the existing shoreline. 

11.9 Value of Development. The Development involves activities with a value more 

than $500,000.00. The value of the improvements defined as Development is estimated at 

$600,000.00 as shown in the Construction Estimate, attached as Exhibit "H". 

11.10 Compatibility With Surrounding Uses. The Subject Property is surrounded by 

properties located within the SLUC Urban District and the CZO General Commercial District 

19 



















































































































,

,-

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

,-

,-

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

(

l

l 

·l

(_ 

(_ 

(_ 

(_ 

L 

L 

l.. 

L 

'

'

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 
,I, 

WAIMEA HIGH SCHOOL 

GYMNASIUM COMPLEX 

USE, CLASS IV AND VARIANCE PERMITS APPLICATION 
DOE PROJECT No. Q43201-18 
TMK (4) 1-6-010: 004 AND (4) 1-6-009: 023 
9707 TSUCHIYA ROAD 

WAIMEA, KAUAI, HAWAII 

PROPOSING AGENCY: 

STATE OF HAWAII 

DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION 

JUNE 2023 

F.2.b.
August 8, 2023



































-

DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR

I. SUMMARY

Action Required by
Planning Commission:

Permit Application Nos. 

Name of Applicant{s) 

II. PERMIT INFORMATION

� Use Permit 

D Project Development Use 
Permit 

[gJ Variance Permit 

D Special Permit 

[gJ Zoning Permit Class 

[gJ1v 

D111 

D Special Management Area 
Permit 

Duse 

D Minor 

D Zoning Amendment 

D General Plan Amendment 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Consideration of Class IV Zoning Permit, Use Permit and Variance 
Permit to allow construction of a new gymnasium facility with 
associated site improvements at the Waimea High School campus. 

Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2023-12 
Use Permit U-2023-9 
Variance Permit V-2023-4 

STATE DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION (DOE), APPLICANT 
ENVIRONMENTAL COMMUNICATIONS, INC., AUTHORIZED AGENT 

PERMITS REQUIRED 

Pursuant to Article 11, Section 8-11.3 of the KCC, 1987, as 
amended, a Use Permit is required to allow any development, 
structures or uses within the Special Treatment Public Facilities 
(ST-P) District. 

A Variance Permit is required to deviate from the maximum 
building height requirement, per Section 8-4.S(b)(l) of the KCC, 
within the Residential zoning district. 

Pursuant to Section 8-3.1 of the KCC, 1987, as amended, a Class 
IV Zoning Permit is a procedural requirement in applying for a 
Use Permit in the Special Treatment Public Facilities (ST-P) 
District. 

AMENDMENTS 

F.2.b.1.
August 8, 2023





















































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

( 

r 

r 

r 

r 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

(

l

l 

l 

l 

l 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

PLANNING DEPARTMENT 

COUNTY OF KAUA'I 

GENERAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS 

The following is a list of General Application requirements for Class III and IV Zoning Permits, Use Permits, 
Project Development Use Permits, Variance Permits, Special Permits, and Special Management Area Permits 
(SMA). In preparing Applications for permit applications or petitions, please provide an exhibit and/or page 
reference for the application submittal, information, and documents requested. Zoning Permit Application 
Forms, Special Management Assessment Forms, and Special Treatment District Checklist are also available 
at the Planning Department, 4444 Rice Street, Suite A473, Lihu'e, Hawai'i 96766. 

Pre-permit application consultation with the Planning Department and various County and State 
Agencies are recommended. 

Instructions for Petitions for General Plan Amendments, State Land Use District Boundary Amendments ( 15 
acres or less) and Zoning Amendments, are also available at the Planning Department. 

An original plus one copy of the following items shall be submitted for review by the Planning Department 
for suitability for processing based on the attached checklist. Upon deeming the application suitable for agency 
review, the Planning Department will contact the applicant to request the additional number of application 
packets needed to complete the land use application for processing. The applicant shall provide 12 copies of 
the final application form and supporting information to complete the application for processing in accordance 
with Section 8-3.l(f) of the Kauai County Code, 1987, as amended. 

Application shall be deemed complete when the above requirements have been satisfied and the following 
have been received: 

1. Twelve (12) copies of the FINAL application.
2. Non-refundable filing fee payable to the COUNTY OF KAUAI, DIRECTOR OF FINANCE.
3. The filing fees are as follows:

o State Land Use District Boundary Amendment = $150.00
o General Plan Amendment = $600.00
o Zoning Amendment = $300.00
o Special Permit = $150.00
o Use Permit, Project Development Use Permit, Variance Permit = $300.00
o Class III Zoning Permit = $200.00
o Class IV Zoning Permit = $800.00
o Special Management Area Use Permit = $1,476-46
o Special Management Area Minor Permit = $150.00
o Shoreline Setback Variance Permit = $300.00

4. Digital copy (.PDF preferred) of entire transmittal including documents & exhibits on a CD or DVD.

D Incomplete _______________________________ _

D Application Deemed Complete as all information has been submitted and necessary fees have been 
paid. 

�� Jun 9, 2023 By: Date: 
------------------- ---------------

Updated January 2018 
C:\Users\dcua\AppData\Lacal\Micrasaft\ Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\36L2GMDE\GeneralFilingRequireClasslll IV _Upd 2018.dotx.docx 

F.2.c.
August 8. 2023





r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

r 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

( 

(

l

l 

l 

l_ 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

L 

7 Conceptual Building Plans (drawn to scale): 
0 All existing and/or proposed building elevations with finished material called out. Exterior Elevations shall identify the existing and finished grade; 
0 Building heights, maximum wall plate height, cross sections that are drawn to scale and clearly define the architectural character of the development; and 
0 Floor plans of all buildings and typical unit types for multi-family projects; 

WRITTEN REQUIREMENTS 
8 

9 

A Report or Statement addressing the following: 
0 Description of the proposed project and proposed uses, operations and management of the proposed use which includes, but is not limited to, proposed employee housing plan, hours of operation; 
0 Summary of Permits (i.e. Use Permit, Variance Permit, Special Permit, Class IV Zoning etc.) or Land Use Amendments requested, and the application section of the Kaua'i County Code or regulation citing the specific standards and criteria for granting of the permit or amendment being requested; 
0 Policies and Objectives of the General Plan; the provisions of the Community Development Plan applicable to the application (including design standards and application requirements); the provisions of the applicable zoning district; and an analysis of the extent to which the application, if granted, conforms to these provisions of the applicable district; and an analysis of the extent to which the application, if granted, conforms to these policies, objectives and provisions; 
0 Detailed land use history of the parcel, which includes but is not limited to, former and existing State and County land use designations, violations and uses; 
0 Status reports of all Zoning Amendment ordinance conditions, existing Land Use Permit conditions, and Subdivision Application conditions pertaining to the project site; 
0 Analysis of the secondary impacts of the proposed use on the surrounding area, which includes but is not limited to, increases in property value, population, housing, community services and facility needs, secondary jobs and employment generated, and compatibility with the surrounding uses; 
0 Water source, supply and distribution system analysis, which includes but is not limited to, methods of irrigation that exists on the parcel and proposed for the application, location and use of groundwater and non-potable water sources; 
0 Sewage Disposal Analysis - A description of a proposed method of sewage disposal; 
0 Solid Waste Disposal Analysis - A description of a proposed method of solid waste disposal, including methods for recycling, reclamation and waste stream diversion; and 
0 Description of environmentally sensitive areas, habitat and botanical features, which includes but is not limited to, wetlands streams, rock outcroppings, endangered plants and animals, and exceptional trees. 
A completed evaluation form or written comments from the County Housing Division relative to the County's housing requirements, pursuant to Ordinance No. 860. 

AflDI'I'IONAL INFORMATION 

SUBIBCT TO DmECTOR'S DETERMINATIO 

APPLICANT & PROPERTY INFORMATION 
IO I Title Report necessary for the project site. Title Insurance will be mandatory for all affectedKuleana parcel(s). 

GRAPHIC & SCHEMATIC REQUIREMENTS 
II Schematic Site Development Plans of Plot Plans drawn to scale, which identify the following: 

0 Location of existing or required access to shoreline or traditional site either on property or adjacent to; and 
0 Certified Shoreline, shoreline setback lines, stream and other setback lines. 

3 

See Plans 

See Plans 

See Plans 
Exhibit and/or Staff Pa2e Number Comments 

7 

8 

44 

7-20

8 

NA 

31 

32 

NA 

30 

NA 

Exhibit and/or Staff Page Number Comments 
NA 

Exhibit and/or Staff Page Number Comments 

See Plans 

NA 



12 Three (3) dimensional drawings of models, which clearly indicates the relation of the proposed 
development to other uses and structure within the surrounding area, and show the development 

See Plans in the context of significant viewplanes. 

13 Dated photographs of the project site, existing structures, and the surrounding area. 52&58 

WRITTEN REQUIREMENTS 
Exhibit and/or Staff 
Pae:e Number Comments 

14 Additional information to the included in the required report: 

0 Preliminary archaeological and historical data; 14,17 

0 A preservation/mitigation plan; NA 

0 Traffic Impact analysis showing level of service with and without the project, when required 
NA by the State Department of Transportation OR County Department of Public Works; 

0 A Transportation Master Plan, which includes vehicle, pedestrian and other forms of 
NA circulation to adjacent services and destinations; 

0 For parcel located in SLUD Agricultural or County Agriculture zoning district, an 
assessment of the impact which the proposed use may have on agricultural use of the parcel, 

25 which includes but is not limited to, feasibility analysis of potential agricultural uses suited 
for the project site; 

0 A Water Master Plan, which aligns to the goals of the 2020 Water Plan for Kaua'i; NA 

0 A baseline study and preservation/mitigation plan for environmentally sensitive areas and 
NA endangered species habitat; 

0 A summary of all meetings held between the Applicant and any community or residential 
group that may be impacted by the Applicant's proposal, the issues raised at these meetings, 21 and any proposed mitigation measures by the Applicant to deal with the raised concerns; 

0 For properties adjacent to the shoreline or containing traditional access or sites requiring 
NA access -A Preservation/Mitigation Plan detailing how access will be allowed and managed; 

0 For projects near the shoreline, riparian areas or wetlands, or those involving intensive 
landscaping or turf management, such as golf courses -Identification and assessment of 

NA chemicals and fertilizers used, including but not limited to, detailing effects upon surface, 
underground and marine water resources and neighboring properties and surrounding flora & 
fauna. If applicable, provide a mitigation plan and maintenance program and schedule; 

0 For properties listed on the Kaua'i Historic and Non-Historic Resource Inventory-An 
NA inventory and description of historic features on the property; 

0 Proposed Employee Housing Plan; and NA 

0 Description of sustainable strategies incorporated into project, including but not limited to, 
strategies to reduce water and energy and material consumption, promote alternative forms 
of transportation, reduce wastewater and storm runoff, waste stream diversion and encourage NA 
the preservation of function ecosystem, i.e. LEEDS, Los Impact Design, Green Building 
principles, recycling, composting, BMP's, etc .. 

ADDITIONAL PERMITS 
Exhibit and/or Staff 
Pae:e Number Comments 

15 For projects located within the Special Treatment District -The Applicant shall comply with 
necessary requirements of Section 8-11.5 of the KCC, and provide information noted in the 35 Special Treatment District Checklist. 

16 For projects located within the Special Management Area (SMA) -The Applicant shall complete 
48 & submit an SMA Assessment application of the proposed development. 

17 For properties located within 500 feet of the shoreline -The Applicant shall comply with the 
requirements of Section 8-27 of the KCC, entitled "Shoreline Setback and Coastal Protection," 48 and provide the necessary information contained in the Shoreline Setback checklist. 

18 If applicable, the petition requirements and content for a Special Permit, pursuant to Chapter 13 
of the Rules of Practice and Procedures of the Planning Commission, and Chapter 205 of the NA Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS). 

19 A Finding of No Significant Impact (FONSI) or Final Environmental Impact Statement (EIS), 
NA when required by Chapter 343 of the Hawai'i Revised Statutes (HRS). 

4 





































































































































DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING 

KA'AINA HULL, DIRECTOR 

JODI A. HIGUCHI SAYEGUSA, DEPUTY DIRECTOR 

I. SUMMARY

Action Required by
Planning Commission:

Permit Application Nos. 

Name of Applicant(s) 

II. PERMIT INFORMATION

[8:1 Use Permit 

D Project Development Use 
Permit 

D Variance Permit 

D Special Permit 

[8:1 Zoning Permit Class 

[8:11v 

D111 

[8] Special Management Area 
Permit 

[8:1 Use 

D Minor 

D Zoning Amendment 

D General Plan Amendment 

DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

DEREK S.K. KAWAKAMI, MAYOR 

MICHAEL A. DAHILIG, MANAGING DIRECTOR 

Consideration of Class IV Zoning Permit, Use Permit, and a Special 

Management Area Use Permit, to allow the construction of a viewing 

platform, boardwalk, and associated improvements at the Pa'ula'ula 

State Historical Park. 

Special Management Area Use Permit SMA(U)-2023-13 

Class IV Zoning Permit Z-IV-2023-11 

Use Permit U-2023-8 

STATE OF HAWAl'I, DEPARTMENT OF LAND AND NATURAL RESOURCES 

(DLNR) 

PERMITS REQUIRED 

Pursuant to Section 8-11.3 of the KCC, 1987 as amended, a Use 

Permit is required to allow any use, structure or development 

within the Special Treatment District. 

Pursuant to Section 8-3.1 of the KCC, 1987, as amended, a Class 

IV Zoning Permit is a procedural requirement in applying for a 

Use Permit. 

Pursuant to Section 205A of the Hawaii Revised Statutes (HRS) 
and the Special Management Area Rules and Regulations of the 

County of Kaua'i, the cost of the improvements exceeds the 

$500,000 threshold which constitutes "Development". 

AMENDMENTS 

http s://kau aicaunty-my .sharepaint.cam/persana 1/dcu a_kau ai_ga v /Dacuments/dcua. file s/Regulatary File s/Caa st al Devela pment/SMA P ermits/SMA(U)-2023-13 /Re parts/Re part-1 7.11.2023 
O(_SMA(U)-2023-13_ State DLNR_Viewing Platfarm.dacx F.2.c.1.

August 8, 2023













































































































































































































H.1.
August 8, 2023














































































































	2023-8-8 Planning Commission Agenda
	D.1. PC OP 05.09.23 Meeting Minutes1
	F.1.a.1. SMAU-2023-9 - Makahuena Gate and Water Feature - Signed Stipulation and Exhibit A 1
	F.2.a. Peralta Application 1
	PERALTA 1
	Scanned from COK Planning
	PERALTA 3

	F.2.a.1. Peralta Director's Report
	F.2.b. Waimea Gym Application 1
	Waimea Gym
	Scanned from COK Planning

	F.2.b.1. Waimea Gym Director's Report 1
	F.2.c. Paulaula State Historical Park Platform Application 1
	Paulaula State Historical Park Platform
	Scanned from COK Planning

	F.2.c.1. Paulaula State Historical Park Platform Director's Report 1
	G.1.a.1. Hokuala Director's Report
	H.1. Malama Kuaiana Petition for Appeal 1



